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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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RESULTS SUMMARY

The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of Emperor HE2F45EBEEAG([ARF )z ES

Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) announces the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30
September 2021 (the “Year”).

HK$'000

=
g o

S((EFEINEF)EMARBREM
BAR(FEAI NEE ) EE2021F9 A
BRLFRE(AFEDZEEZEAE

For the year ended
30 September
BZE9H30BLFE

2021

Total revenue 676,812 917,407
Financing 548,448 779,246
Brokerage Services 99,349 115,607
Placing & Underwriting 16,280 13,409
Corporate Finance 12,735 9,145

Impairment allowance' 939,302 1,327,345

Net loss (576,094) (689,747)

Basic loss per share BREREE (10.23)
(HK cents) 7

! Represents the net impairment allowances for margin loans, and other ' #EHFRER - EtERLBR 2 BEREHFHE

loans and advances

ij"‘ JI"."”_'I{ Ellﬂﬁ%ﬁ
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

RESULTS

As a result of a tough business operating environment, the
Group’s revenue inevitably decreased to HK$676.8 million (2020:
HK$917.4 million) during the Year. An impairment allowances for
margin loans, and other loans and advances (the “Impairment”)
of HK$939.3 million (2020: HK$1,327.3 million) was recognised.
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$576.1 million (2020: HK$689.7 million). Basic loss per share
was HK8.55 cents (2020: HK10.23 cents).

MARKET REVIEW

During the Year, the overall global economic environment
improved as major economies regained momentum in response
to the increasing vaccination coverage and gradual resumption
of business activities. Nevertheless, Sino-U.S. tensions and
geopolitical issues were yet to be solved. Besides, headwinds
arising from various policies announced by the Central
Government and credit crises of certain giant Chinese property
developers have hindered the development of the regional
capital market. In the face of both global and regional issues,
financial and stock market sentiments have inevitably been
impaired. The Hang Seng Index was volatile during the Year —
reaching the highest point of the Year at 31,085 on 17 February
2021, and closing at 24,576 on 30 September 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Established in 1993, the Group is a renowned Hong Kong
based financial institution providing a wide range of financial
services including (i) commercial and personal lending as well as
margin and initial public offering (“IPQO”) financing; (ii) brokerage
services, wealth management and asset management; (iii)
placing and underwriting services for listed issuers; and (iv)
corporate finance advisory services. The Company was listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in April 2007.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

Financing

The Group’s financing segment derives interest income from
commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing. The loans granted to customers range from short-term
unsecured loans (e.g. tax loan, bridging loan, term loan, personal
loan) to long-term secured loans (e.g. property mortgage).
Built on a renowned reputation for delivering professional and
personalised loan services, the Group has developed a niche
in the loan market, providing corporate and retail clients with
tailored liquidity solutions to meet their corporate goals and
personal needs.

During the Year, the segment’s revenue was HK$548.4 million
(2020: HK$779.2 million), accounting for 81.0% (2020: 84.9%)
of the Group’s total revenue. With the visibility on the economic
outlook remained uncertain, the Group has taken a pro-active
approach to strengthen the overall credit risk management
and control mechanism in its financing business. The Group
has tightened the loan approval procedures and was prudent
on the valuation assessment of the collaterals. The Group also
monitored the market situation closely and adjusted the interest
rate and loan-to-value ratio timely, in order to optimise the
balance between risk and capital.

Brokerage Services

The Group currently provides brokerage services for securities,
futures and options traded on exchanges in Hong Kong, mainland
China (via Shanghai and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
schemes respectively) and major overseas countries, as well
as wealth management and asset management services. The
Group offers web-based and mobile trading platforms which
enable real-time transaction and investment portfolio monitoring.
As at 30 September 2021, the Group operated 3 branches
in Hong Kong and ran 3 liaison offices, which are located in
Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou respectively. The Group’s
wealth management division provides advice regarding a wide
array of investment services, including securities, mutual funds,
insurance-linked products, and real estate investment. In its
asset management arm, apart from running private equity fund,
the Group also provides customised discretionary investment
services to its customers.

During the Year, as a result of the volatile stock market, revenue
from brokerage services was HK$99.3 million (2020: HK$115.6
million), accounting for 14.7% (2020: 12.6%) of the Group’s
total revenue. During the Year, the Group launched its digital
enhancement project, with a focus on online account opening and
elPO application, enabling the Group to attract new customers.
The Group also promoted the use of electronic services by its
customers in various ways, to enhance customer engagement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Placing and Underwriting

With a highly experienced team of professionals, the Group
offers placing and underwriting services to various Hong Kong
listed companies. The Group serves as placing agents in equity
and debt placing deals and IPO-related transactions. The Group
also participates in underwriting rights issue exercises.

During the Year, the Group participated in a number of primary
and secondary market financing projects. Revenue from the
placing and underwriting segment increased to HK$16.3 million
(2020: HK$13.4 million), accounting for 2.4% (2020: 1.5%) of
the Group’s total revenue.

Corporate Finance

The division holds a full corporate finance licence under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, allowing it to advise on
Takeovers Code related transactions and undertake sponsor
work for IPOs in addition to general corporate finance advisory
services. Apart from IPO-related services, the Group offers
advisory services for corporate transactions including placing,
rights issue, corporate restructuring and merger and acquisition.

With the increasing number of corporate transactions and IPO
projects handled by the Group during the Year, revenue from
the corporate finance segment increased to HK$12.7 million
(2020: HK$9.1 million), accounting for 1.9% (2020: 1.0%) of the
Group’s total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

OUTLOOK

The Group believes that the China market will continue to be
a growth engine and Hong Kong will remain a vital link for
access to China’'s stock market. With Hong Kong’s further
solidifying and amplifying strategic role in the Greater Bay Area
(*"GBA”), and reaping the benefits of potential collaboration with
Shenzhen’s Qianhai economic zone, Hong Kong’s position as an
international financial hub will be reinforced by capitalising on a
surge of interest from mainland Chinese investors. In addition,
the Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect Scheme in
the GBA will surely stimulate demand for capital investment
and related products, by enabling mainland Chinese investors
domiciled in the GBA to invest in approved wealth management
products in Hong Kong, and allowing foreign investors to tap
financial products launched in China via the city, which will in
turn enhance Hong Kong’s standing as the offshore financial
centre of the world’s second-largest capital market.

The Group will further update its frontend and backend trading
systems and diversify its digital offerings to optimise the trading
experience for customers, in order to enhance its retail market
segment competitiveness. Meanwhile, the Group will strengthen
its wealth management business development by offering more
unique and quality investment funds and bond products and
services to its clients in addition to insurance services.

With a number of challenges which are yet to be resolved, the
gloomy economic outlook and market instability are expected to
remain. The Group will actively review its loan portfolio and loan
receivables status; conduct more comprehensive assessments
of collaterals to minimise default risk; and exercise stringent
control over operating costs. Looking ahead, the Group will
adhere to its prudent approach and adopt appropriate strategies
to mitigate downside risk while seizing opportunities, and will
endeavour to maintain steady businesses development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations by cash mainly generated
from operations and borrowings, as well as proceeds raised from
issuance of bonds. As at 30 September 2021, the Group’s current
assets and current liabilities were HK$6,106.3 million (2020:
HK$9,326.0 million) and HK$2,942.3 million (2020: HK$4,582.6
million) respectively. As at 30 September 2021, aggregate of
bank balances, cash and pledged bank deposits of the Group
amounted to HK$1,024.1 million (2020: HK$852.0 million), which
were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”").

During the Year, the Group has repaid all of the United States
dollar (“US$”) bonds and part of the HK$ bonds by deploying
internal resources. As at 30 September 2021, the total carrying
amount of the Company’s outstanding HK$ bonds was
approximately HK$499.1 million (2020: HK$ bonds and US$
bonds totalled HK$1,394.6 million), which are due 2022 with a
coupon interest rate of 5.25% per annum.

As at 30 September 2021, the Group had bank borrowings
of HK$370.0 million (2020: Nil) excluding IPO financing. The
total borrowings of the Group, excluding the IPO financing,
decreased to HK$869.1 million (2020: HK$1,394.6 million),
hence the gearing ratio was reduced to 22.6% (2020: 31.5%;
calculated as a percentage of total borrowings excluding IPO
financing over total equity of the Group). The Group did not have
any material foreign exchange exposure as at 30 September
2021.

FIEAL 1TE

RUEUND COCKRTALL

M ER
BEXLRE  RBESRMBER

AEEFZRACLEERMEREENE
SURBITESFMSNRBAEEKEE
IRIEES - R2021F9830H » KEE
mENEE MRS EED R A6,106,300,000
# £(2020 £ :9,326,000,000 # 7T )
N 2942300000 & (2020 % :
4,582,600,0007%8 7T ) » 1420214 9 A 30
H  AEBEZRITHES  RERBIRFR
TERA £ A1,024,100,000% 7£(2020
£ :852,000,000/87T) * FELBITAME ©

RAFE  AEBEURIEREEZEI
ETLBEHFMBHABILES - 2021597
30H  ARRIEETALEFFEAREEYD
£499,100,00078 7T( 20204 : B LE S
N 3 T1E % $£1,394,600,0008 7¢) © R
2022F FIHf - EBERBFF5.25% o

R2021F9A30H + ANEE ZIRITER(N
BIEEH XA AFAEEME ) A370,000,000%
TC(2020%F : ) - ANEBZ BB (TE
EERAAHABEME) T4 Z2E869,100,000
77T (20204F : 1,394,600,000/87T) » #ikE
HRERFVE22.6% (20204 : 31.5% :
BEAREBTEREENAREEREMNER
BENESRBZADLLETE) - 12021
F9H30H » AEBEWEL(EKXINER

o0 o
A

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT

ANNUAL REPORT £ ¥ 2020/2021



10

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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With the Group’s sufficient bank balances and cash, its available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$2,301.2 million (2020:
HK$2,440.5 million), as well as the proceeds raised from the
issuance of bonds, the Board considers the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operation and future development.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 September 2021, bank deposit of the Group with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$160.0 million (2020: HK$160.0
million) was pledged to a bank as security for banking facilities.

Impairment Allowances

An Impairment of HK$939.3 million (2020: HK$1,327.3 million)
was recognized this Year. The Impairment was made in respect
to 96 individual clients, including margin clients and borrowers
in commercial, mortgage and personal loans (“Loans”). Details
of the reasons for the recognition of majority of the Impairment
are set out below:

1. Net provision for impairment of accounts receivable
arising from margin financing amounted to approximately
HK$659 million

a. During the Year, eleven advances to customers in
margin financing with the total gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,492 million were assessed as
credit-impaired stage mainly due to the sharp decline in
the market price of listed securities pledged as collateral
in the Year and failure of the margin borrowers to fully
make up the margin shortfall by providing additional
collaterals. The impairment provision of these eleven
exposures for the Year was determined by assessing
the future cash flows expected to be recoverable
from the borrowers and the listed securities pledged
as collateral for each of the margin borrower on an
individual assessment basis. Impairment provision with
a total amount of approximately HK$624 million was
made for the Year for these eleven exposures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

During the Year, two advances to customers in
margin financing with the total gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$259 million were assessed as
credit-impaired stage mainly due to the sole listed
security pledged as collateral for these two loans
being suspended for trading in the Year and failure
of the margin borrowers to fully make up the margin
shortfall by providing additional collaterals. The
impairment provision of these two exposures for the
Year was determined by assessing the future cash flows
expected to be recoverable from the borrowers and the
suspended securities pledged as collateral for each
of the margin borrower on an individual assessment
basis. Impairment provision with a total amount of
approximately HK$238 million was made for the Year
for these two exposures.

During the Year, an impairment reversal of approximately
HK$223 million was made on an advance to a
customer in margin financing with total gross amount
of approximately HK$251 million, which was classified
as credit-impaired stage, due to an increase in fair value
of listed security pledged as collateral in the Year.

2. Net provision for impairment of loans and advances
amounted to approximately HK$280 million

a.

During the Year, four loans and advances to borrowers
with the total gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$255 million were assessed as credit-impaired stage
mainly due to failure of these borrowers to repay the
interest and/or the principal on time in the Year. The
impairment provision of these four exposures for the
Year was determined by assessing the future cash
flows expected to be recoverable from the borrowers
and the listed securities pledged as collateral for
each of the borrowers on an individual assessment
basis. Impairment provision with a total amount of
approximately HK$108 million was made for the Year
for these four exposures.
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b. During the Year, additional impairment allowance of

approximately HK$94 million was recognised for two
loans and advances, which were assessed as credit-
impaired stage in previous year, with gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$280 million, as a result
of further decrease in fair value of pledged listed
securities, pledged properties and deterioration of
financial capability of these borrowers.

c. During the Year, two loans and advances to borrowers

with the total gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$58 million were assessed as credit-impaired stage
mainly due to failure of these borrowers to repay the
interest and the principal on time in the Year. The
impairment provision of these two exposures for the
Year was determined by assessing the future cash
flow expected to be recoverable from the borrowers
by estimating the cash flows expected to be collected
including an assessment of cash flows expected to
be recovered taking account of the current conditions
affecting the borrower, past collection history, and
consideration of forward looking factors. Impairment
provision with a total amount of approximately
HK$44 million was made for the Year for these two
exposures.

d. Theremaining impairment allowances of HK$34 million,

majority of which were attributable to mostly personal
loans and term loans, where the borrowers failed to
repay upon maturity and were either declared bankrupt
or contact was lost with them during the Year.

The interest rate of the credit-impaired margin loans
ranged from 6% to 21% per annum, and the outstanding
amount was secured by charging against the portfolio
of listed securities in the clients’ margin loan accounts
maintained with the Group. For certain corporate clients,
the shareholder or the director of these corporate clients
have provided personal guarantee in favour of the Group.

For other credit-impaired loans including term loans,
mortgage loans and personal loans, the terms and interest
rates are determined by the Group on a case by case
basis. The interest rate of the credit-impaired term loans
and mortgage loans ranged from 8% per annum to 24%
per annum (and up to 46% per annum for small personal
loans) which were determined with reference to the clients’
creditworthiness, amount of loan principal, duration of loan,
value and quality of collateral.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Follow-up and debt collection actions on overdue and
defaulted loans

The Group has debt recovery procedures in place. For any loans
with shortfall and/or overdue payments, demand letters and
legal letters will be issued. If the borrower does not respond, the
Group will engage external legal advisors for legal actions. At
the same time, the Group will contact the borrower for additional
collateral and/or settlement plan. The Group may also engage
debt collection agents for such loan where appropriate. If the
negotiation is not successful, or additional collateral is not
sufficient or default in settlement plan, external legal advisers
will issue final warning to the borrower. Subsequently, writs of
summon will be served to the borrower to take proceedings to
court.

Debt recovery actions had been taken on the credit-impaired
loans. Some legal proceedings on such credit-impaired loans
were still in progress.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 September 2021, the Group had 75 (2020: 77) account
executives and 130 (2020: 131) employees. Total staff costs
(including directors’ remuneration) were approximately HK$77.9
million (2020: HK$62.1 million). Employees’ remuneration was
determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility,
competence and skills, experience and performance as well
as market pay level. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, provident funds and other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company
adopted a share option scheme on 26 January 2017, particulars
of which are set out in the section headed “Share Options” in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend any payment of final dividend
for the year ended 30 September 2021 (2020: Nil).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEECERE

DAISY YEUNG

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

B
THRBRESALE

Daisy Yeung, aged 56, joined the Group in January 1996. She
is the Managing Director of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. Ms. Yeung is the Chairperson of the
Executive Committee as well as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
She is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy,
overseeing operations and the overall steering of the Company’s
management focusing in the areas of marketing and business
development. Ms. Yeung is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company, including Emperor Securities Limited, Emperor
Futures Limited, Emperor Wealth Management Limited and
Emperor Asset Management Limited, all of which she is also a
responsible officer under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO”). Moreover, she is now the Permanent Honorary President
and Vice-Chairman of The Institute of Securities Dealers Limited
and a General Committee member of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies. She has accumulated over 25 years
of management experience in financial industry and has been
active in driving the development of the local securities industry.
Ms. Yeung holds a Bachelor’'s Degree of Science in Business
Administration.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREEECERE

CHOISUKHING, LOUISA
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

EERE
BITEERAAUWE

PEARL CHAN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

R {m 27
BITEE

Choi Suk Hing, Louisa, aged 57, joined the
Board in March 2008. She is an Executive
Director and the Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms. Choi is the Chairperson of
the Corporate Governance Committee and
a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company as well as a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. She is also
a responsible officer of Emperor Capital
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
under the SFO. Ms. Choi has over 23
years of experience in the finance industry
covering securities, futures and corporate
finance. Before that, she had worked in
the company secretary profession in both
listed companies as well as professional
firms for over 8 years. Ms. Choi holds a
Master’s Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, Australia. She is
a fellow member of both The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries).

Pearl Chan, aged 48, joined the Board in
June 2011. She is an Executive Director
and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company. She is also a director
and responsible officer of Emperor Capital
Limited under the SFO. She has been
working in the corporate finance field for
more than 20 years. She was a practising
lawyer in Hong Kong before joining the
Group. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong
and a Master’'s Degree in Management
from Macquarie University, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chu Kar Wing, aged 64, joined the Board in May 2010. He
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chu is also an independent non-executive
director of a Hong Kong listed company, Emperor International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163). He was previously an
independent non-executive director of China Power Clean
Energy Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 735,
delisted on 19 August 2019). He has extensive experience in
banking and finance sector for several well-known corporations.
He is currently the President of Canada-China Culture and
Education Association. Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor’'s Degree of
Social Sciences majoring in Economics.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Poon Yan Wai, aged 51, joined the Board in January 2014. He
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. He is now the financial controller,
company secretary and an authorised representative of a Hong
Kong listed company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of a Hong Kong listed company, Dragon Mining Limited
(Stock Code: 1712). He has over 20 years of experience in
auditing and accounting field. Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Accountancy and a Master's Degree in Corporate
Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wan Choi Ha, aged 54, joined the Board in July 2015. She
is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Ms. Wan has been admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1993 and is now a Senior Partner
of Wan and Leung, Solicitors. Ms. Wan graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the provision of financial services,
including (i) commercial and personal lending as well as margin
and IPO financing; (ii) brokerage services, wealth management
and asset management; (iii) placing and underwriting services
for listed issuers; and (iv) corporate finance advisory services.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 71 of this report.

No interim dividend (2020: Nil) was paid during the Year and
the Board did not recommend any payment of a final dividend
for the Year (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set out
in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5to 13
of this report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 49 to 54 of this report and notes 39 and 40 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2020/2021 of the Company.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 74.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 30 September 2021 represented the aggregate of
contributed surplus (stated as “special reserve” in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements) and accumulated loss
amounting to approximately HK$101.9 million (2020: HK$101.9
million) and HK$442.1 million (2020: retained profits of HK$164.1
million) respectively.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the
subsidiaries of the Company in issue and the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company for acquisition of a subsidiary
pursuant to the group reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution
to the Shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay
a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that:—

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii)y  therealisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 180 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted
at the end of the Year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property and equipment
at a cost of approximately HK$274,000.

Details of changes in the property and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

Details of the debentures of the Company in the form of
unsecured bonds are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 18%
(2020: 14%) of the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer
accounted for 4% (2020: 5%) of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group'’s five largest customers.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principal
activities of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Managing Director)
Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa

Ms. Pearl Chan

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chu Kar Wing
Mr. Poon Yan Wai
Ms. Wan Choi Ha

Biographical details of the current Directors and senior
management as at the date of this report are set out from
pages 14 to 16 of this annual report. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa and Mr. Chu Kar Wing shall
retire by rotation at the 2022 AGM. Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa,
being eligible, shall offer herself for re-election while Mr. Chu
Kar Wing who served as independent non-executive director of
the Company (“INED”) for over 9 years, being eligible but does
not offer himself for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2022 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which
are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and the
directors of the Group respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 September 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company (“ECG Securities Code”) were as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director

EEfR

Capacity/Nature of Interests

B0 mME

Ms. Daisy Yeung
Bt

Eligible beneficiary of a private
discretionary trust B
IARIBEREZAEBIRA

Beneficial owner
EmEa A

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa
R A

Beneficial owner
EmEa A

Beneficial owner
EmEa A

Ms. Pearl Chan
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ENMHEAEIEBIEXVER) 2 - HEKR G,
NEEERHEALENARFREEZES K
HIE& I ZE35218 B HE T 2 B e R B AR
RNAIERAZETHEITEFR H ZIZAEST
AT REFFEBESTADEAESTAS
RARIMBRZ Tz SRR WT

RAEQT ZF AR

AXRAEAEREE0IETZEBER(KR
7))

Number Approximate%
of Shares Issued Voting
Interested Shares

BEREZNRG NIRERIT
BE BREREERD%
2,879,521,438 42.72%

(Note)

(B1at)
18,000,000 0.26%
4,680,000 0.07%
2,925,000 0.04%
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Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Capital Group Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited
(*AY Capital Holdings”). AY Capital Holdings was in turn held by
CDM Trust & Board Services AG (“CDM Trust”) in trust for a private
discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert
Yeung”). Ms. Daisy Yeung had deemed interest in these Shares by
virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2021, none of
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 26 January 2017. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 30 September 2021, none of the Directors or their respective
associates was interested in any business which was considered
to compete or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXZRA5EEER QT
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OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND H#tATRRBRORBEERG ZES
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the FHEAAATEERESTHAERA -
Company, as at 30 September 2021, the following persons or 2021498308 * LA T AL & A A (BRA
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the ARAFRIEZBHZFESITHA EIN) R K EES
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or AP R AR A EIEEB L850 R
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded 1E(FE % M IS 1551 )E 33615 BEBEF 2 &
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO 2 ([T Z LM ) 2 SA R -
(“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long position in the Shares RRGBZHEE

Number Approximate %
of Shares Issued Voting

Capacity/Nature of Interests Interested Shares
BERZNRG HILE BT
B, RERtE BE BAREERO%
AY Capital Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 2,879,5621,438 42.72%
15 X B8 5 P AR MEEHEE Z (Note)
(Btat)
CDM Trust Trustee of a pri\iate discretionary trust 2,879,521,438 42.72%
ABIBEFEZXEA (Note)
(Btat)
Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of a private discretionary trust  2,879,521,438 42.72%
HiEt FABIBEFEZBISZA (Note)
(Btat)
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 2,879,5621,438 42.72%
&+ A8 2 s (Note)
(Btat)
China Huarong Asset Interest in a controlled corporation 551,522,000 8.18%
Management Co., Ltd. REEHEE 2 s
PR ERE EE RGN
AR
ERMEBREEEERMNBM  Interest in a controlled corporation 551,522,000 8.18%
yNC] MEEHEE Z
Taiping Assets Investment Manager 612,900,000 9.09%
Management (HK) KEBEEA

Company Limited
NFEEERR (F8)

AR
Taiping Trustees Limited 'I;rustee 612,900,000 9.09%
KEEERRAA SN

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Daisy Yeung had
deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2021, the Directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares
as recorded in DI Register.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly
or indirectly, in such transactions:

1. Master Leasing Agreements

(a) 2018 Master Leasing Agreement (“2018 MLA”)

Date: 24 May 2018
Parties: (1) The Company
(2) Emperor International
Holdings Limited (“Emperor
International”)
Term: From 24 May 2018 to 31 March

2021

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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Nature:

2018 MLA sets out the framework
of the terms governing all
existing and future tenancy/
licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy
Transaction(s)”) regarding leasing
of certain office properties or other
properties (including signage or
signboard space) from Emperor
International and its subsidiaries
(“Emperor International Group”)
with aggregate tenancy annual caps
being set for each of the financial
years ended 30 September 2018,
2019, 2020 and for the six months
ended 31 March 2021 (*Aggregate
Tenancy Annual Caps”).

Pursuant to the 2018 MLA, relevant
members of the Group and the
relevant members of Emperor
International Group may from time
to time enter into any definitive
leasing agreementsinrelationto any
Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)”). The
terms of each Definitive Leasing
Agreement shall be on normal
commercial terms or on terms
which are no less favorable to
the Group than terms offered by
independent third parties. The
terms and rental shall be subject
to arm’s length negotiation and
determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference
to the then prevailing market rents
on property(ies) comparable in
location, area and permitted use.

Announcements: 24 May 2018 and 9 August 2018

e -

I

off

201842 E HpE !
FIRE B REFE
FEKMBRAR ([
HREEEREE] )
HEETHRAE

¥ EMmmE (B
EEEREAE)
ZFTBIRA KKK
HE BERXS (
[HERXS] ) B
MEZRIGFR - WHLE
220184 + 2019
#F & 20209 A30
BItRBHFEER
HZE2021F3A31
H1E6fE A 5 BT
VRHEFE LR
( [BEEFE L
BR] ) o

RIE201842 T &1
& AR EERK
S PN EE g el
SEMEEKE A
A AR EREE
R BERIMAERIER
MEH=E ( TER
HEHE! ) - %
EAEE % < 5
N 37 G S
CR 7N i AV
F=HRTAKHE
ZARBRET AL  f5K
K2 EENFE
BiE - WERIE
ZEYENR RS
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MEEHMHEES

2018%5A248 &
2018F8 A9H

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT

ANNUAL REPORT £ ¥ 2020/2021

25



26

Aggregate
Amount:

Date:

Term:

Nature:

Announcement:

Aggregate
Amount:

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EETEHRE

For the period from 1 October
2020 to 31 March 2021, the
aggregate amounts of the
Tenancy Transactions with
Emperor International Group
was HK$5,490,068 which did not
exceed the approved tenancy
annual cap of HK$9,000,000 for
the said period.

(b) 2020 Master Leasing Agreement (‘2020 MLA”)

3 December 2020

From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024

With the expiration of the 2018 MLA,
the Company entered into new
master leasing agreement, i.e. 2020
MLA, with Emperor International to
recite the parties’ agreement for
the Tenancy Transactions between
them with new aggregate tenancy
annual caps for each of the six
months ended 30 September
2021, the financial years ending 30
September 2022 and 2023 and the
six months ending 31 March 2024.

3 December 2020

For the period from 1 April 2021
to 30 September 2021, the
aggregate right-of-use amount
and rental expense amount of
the Tenancy Transactions with
Emperor International Group
were HK$2,730,142 and HK$Nil
respectively, which did not
exceed the approved right-of-
use annual cap of HK$10,525,000
and rental expense annual cap of
HK$5,000,000 respectively for the
said period.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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Connected
Relationship
and Directors’
Interest under
(a) and (b):

Emperor International was indirectly
controlled by a private discretionary
trust set up by Dr. Albert Yeung who
is a deemed substantial shareholder
of the Company, Emperor International
was deemed a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Ms. Daisy Yeung, a
Director, has deemed interest in the
transactions by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the private
discretionary trust controlling Emperor
International.

2. Financial Services Agreement with Albert Yeung Holdings
Limited (“AY Holdings”) for Emperor Group (“Emperor

Group FSA”)

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

Announcement:
Circular:

Connected
Relationship
and Directors’
Interests:

27 August 2018

(1) The Company
(2) AY Holdings

From 1 October 2018 to 30 September
2021 (on normal commercial terms and
at rates no more favourable than those
available to other independent third
parties)

Under the Emperor Group FSA, the
Group has agreed to provide to other
listed members under Emperor Group
(i) brokerage services for securities,
futures and options trading; (i) wealth
management and asset management
services; (iii) placing and underwriting
services; (iv) financing services including
margin loans, IPO loans and terms loans;
and (v) financial advisory services.

27 August 2018
5 October 2018

Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest
in this agreement by virtue of being
one of the eligible beneficiaries of the
private discretionary trust controlling AY
Holdings.

(a)&(b)E HEFEBEHBEL (HEK
T2ZBE RARDETZRR) K
FENE 2R ABIESFEEEE
s 0 Bl BIELETRAIE14A

E BE2EBRERAELRR
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Aggregate Amount
Amount: Nature of transaction for the Year

HER RHME REEZETH

HK$'000
TAT

(a) Commission, brokerage, fees and interest income from the 39
then listed members under AY Holdings, its subsidiaries and
associates (“Emperor Group”)
REGIKERETNERN EMRERR - AMBAR RBE
AT(TREEEDZAE L4LE - BARKFEKRA

(b) Maximum margin loan amount to the listed members of the -
Emperor Group* \
BTREEEET LMK ERAFIZERTEERSRE"

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the listed members of the -
Emperor Group* \
BTRESEEET LMK EARRSBER A REEERSRE"

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the listed members of the -
Emperor Group* \
BTREEEET LMK EAFRRENERESTE"

(e) Financial advisory fee from the listed members of the Emperor 2,730
Group
REREEEET EMKEARIE/MAAE

The maximum amount granted during the Year

RAFEEENES SR

Remark: With the expiration of the Emperor Group &5t : BEEEEEE MRS HRRE
FSA, the Company entered into new W AR BIR20214F6 A22H
financial services agreement with Emperor HRSEER RERYRES
International, Emperor Entertainment RAR - REEERAREERA
Hotel Limited, Emperor Watch & Jewellery A REMLEEZEEEERA
Limited, Emperor Culture Group Limited CIER = el YNGR v
and Ulferts International Limited on 22 SRRBE - LWEERRS
June 2021 to continue providing them kEEzHBARIREE#HS
and their subsidiaries with such financial BUARTS - HABR B 2021410 A1
services for a successive term of 3 years HfEEIF - FE LR A
from 1 October 2021. The new annual 20215F10 A1 HBER - 5F1F
caps took effect from 1 October 2021. B2EA AT BEA2021F6
Please refer to the announcements of H22H K&2021F9H27H 2 A
the Company dated 22 June 2021 and HRARTHEA202148H
27 September 2021, and the circular of 31 ZiK o
the Company dated 31 August 2021 for
details.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for

the Yeung Family (“Yeung FSA”)

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

Term:

Announcement:

Circular:

Connected
Relationship

and Directors’

Interests:

27 August 2018

(1) The Company
(2) Ms. Daisy Yeung

Under the Yeung FSA, the Group has
agreed to provide to members of the
Yeung Family (i) brokerage services for
securities, futures and options trading;
(i) wealth management and asset
management services; (iii) financing
services including margin loans, IPO
loans and term loans; and (iv) financial
advisory services. The Group has also
agreed to pay commission and fee to
the Yeung Family, including (1) the
commission and fee for their acting as
placees or underwriters for the securities
of the Company or for the securities
underwritten or placed by the Group; and
(2) referral fee for introducing clients to the
Group relating to the Group’s business.

From 1 October 2018 to 30 September
2021 (on normal commercial terms and
at rates no more favourable than those
available to other independent third
parties)

27 August 2018
5 October 2018
Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest in

this agreement by virtue of being one of
the members of the Yeung Family.
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Aggregate Amount
Amount: Nature of transaction for the Year

HER RHME REEZETH

HK$'000
TAET

(a) Commission, brokerage, fees and interest income from Ms. 4,976
Daisy Yeung and her associate, but excluding the listed
members of the Emperor Group (“Yeung Family”)
REBRFILLIREABEAL  ETERAEKEE T EHX
BRAI(IBRRKEz2MAE KL E - BAKFERA

(b) Maximum margin loan amount to the Yeung Family” 75,400
BTHERIEZ&ZRFRERSE"

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the Yeung Family* 168,174
BTERREEm B XA ARAEEERRE

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the Yeung Family* 1,500
BTBERREZ&RaEHERSE

(e) Financial advisory fee from the Yeung Family* -

KEBRREZ ERERNE

(f) Commission and fee payment to the Yeung Family for their -
services being provided to the Group*

ABRREXNEAASBIRERE M M ER

*

The maximum amount granted during the Year

RAFEERENE=EE

Remark: With the expiration of the Yeung FSA, &= pEEE X e mRE G EEN
the Company entered into new financial KATIR2021FE6 A22H HitE
services agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung ML TETH S RIRE FH
on 22 June 2021 to continue providing = DUEER S RBERRER
such financial services to/from members EIRHABSMRE - HEH
of the Yeung Family for a successive term 2021FE10 1 BHBIEZ=F -
of 3 years from 1 October 2021. The new HEE FEBE2021FE108 18
annual caps took effect from 1 October AR - HIEFELXEALTH
2021. Please refer to the announcements HEA2021F6 A22H8 £ 2021
of the Company dated 22 June 2021 and FQR27THAZ AERANTH
27 September 2021, and the circular of B A2021FE8 H31H 2L o
the Company dated 31 August 2021 for
details.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements, the transactions (other
than item (ii), HK$4,100 of item (iii), (iv) and HK$12,023,000 of
item (v)) are non-exempt continuing connected transactions and
that the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Group’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
disclosed continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”")
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” (“Auditor’'s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs disclosed by
the Group as set out from pages 24 to 30 of this Annual Report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the Auditor’s Letter had been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors
on Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs had
reviewed the CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which was significant in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link of
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should
be paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives, the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Executive and Non-
executive Directors, internal equity of employment conditions
across the Group and applicability of performance based
remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid fees in line with
market practice. No individual should determine his or her own
remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to
financial performance of the Group and individual performance,
ad hoc rewards, share options and other competitive fringe
benefits such as medical and life insurances. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 34 to 62 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$27,000.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer
itself for re-appointment at the 2022 AGM. A resolution for its re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed thereat.

On behalf of the Board

Daisy Yeung
Managing Director

Hong Kong
30 December 2021
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. During the
Year, the Company had fully complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code except with the deviation from code provision
A.2.1 which requires the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer be separate and not be performed by the same individual.

THE BOARD
Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of the success of the
Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance of
the Group.

Board Composition

As at 30 September 2021, the Board comprised six Directors,
three of which are Executive Directors (including the Chairperson)
whilst three are INEDs who possess the skills, experience
and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group. The Board considers
that this composition ensures a strong independent element
with a balance of power and influence between individual in
the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set out from
pages 14 to 16 of this annual report under the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” section.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and not be performed by
the same individual. Ms. Daisy Yeung (being the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group) has also been appointed as the Managing
Director of the Company by the Board who provides the Board
with strong and consistent leadership while at the same time
leading the management on effective planning, formulation,
implementation and execution of long-term business strategies
of the Group. The Directors have considered the issue of balance
of power and authority of the Board and the structure which can
properly address the potential issue on power concentration.
All Directors, who bring different experience and expertise to
the Company, were properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and that adequate, complete and reliable information
is received by the Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

All the INEDs are professionals with well recognized experience
and expertise in financial, legal or accounting fields who
contribute impartial view and make independent judgment on
issues to be discussed at Board meetings. The term of the INEDs
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election provisions
under the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted by the
Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors.
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Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (comprising all the Executive Directors of the Board)
who has been delegated to carry out the day-to-day management
and operation of the Group, formulate business policies and
make decision on key business issues. The Executive Committee
shall have all powers and authorities of the Board except the
following major matters as set out in a “Formal schedule on
matters reserved for and delegated by the Board”:

determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;
- approving annual and interim results and financial reporting;

- declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;

- approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

- approving publication of the announcement for notifiable
transactions under the Listing Rules (except for discloseable
transactions in relation to lease transactions recognizing
the right-of-use asset according to HKFRS 16 Leases)
under the Listing Rules;

- approving non-exempt connected transactions; and

- approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.

Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity and business interest of the Group
and such induction materials will also be provided to newly
appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
All Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.
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The Directors confirmed that they had complied with the ZEEWR KREDETLEEALTAIANA
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. BEFEI 2 TFRIEXEA.6.501F o RAFE
During the Year, each Director has participated in continuous [ER @ SERHDL2HEFEHEERE - 3
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/ @HEEMBUATTIEZ E#KE TIEH
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh  BIEM K - WERERLREHRE 7 HHBEE
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to  §& © I B AIANA BRI FI40 4% -

the Company.

Topics on training covered

Name of Directors BEEA FriRE 2 %3l 8

Daisy Yeung B (a) corporate governance {E¥%E4
Choi Suk Hing, Louisa U (b) finance 817

Pearl Chan eR il 2 (c) industry-specific 1T¥+8#

Chu Kar Wing N (d) regulatory ¥£%&

Poon Yan Wai I

Wan Choi Ha AR E

Relationship between the Board members EEEeREBZBE

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including ZZ=&m 8 7 EEFAEE(BIEFSE -
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations) %7 - KBS HEMmE A HEBIE) -
among each other.

Directors’ Insurance EE2RE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in  ZAAGE St ES A sL & E ¥ 2 F A EEF
respect of any possible legal action against the Directors. IMEHIEE 2 RIREHE -
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Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment BEECHEBRREFEERA
The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is ZANEEEEHESZ 2 BEILHINNT -
set out below:

No. of meetings attended / held
-t V&S V¢

Corporate

Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Governance Executive General
Name of Directors Committee ~ Committee ~ Commitiee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
bEER

=it BNZRE HMZRE RAZAE 2RE H7ZRE BRAS

Executive Directors

UnEs

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Note 1) 9/9 - 17 N - 16/16 212
BRERT (W)

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Note 2) 99 - - - 1 16/16 22
Bt (Hi2)

Ms. Pearl Chan 99 - - - - 16/16 22
Bt

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUKUTES

Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Note 3) 99 33 n 11 - - 22
REREE (W33)

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (Note 4) 99 33 n - 1 - 202
BCEEE (W)

Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Note 5) 99 33 - 11 1 - 202
BYELL (Mi#5)

Total number of meetings held: 9 3 1 1 1 16 2
gremzey:

Notes: Hat

1. Chairperson of the Executive Committee 1. BOTZEEXRFE

2. Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 2. DEBARAZEEXR

3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 3. yMEEexF

4. Chairman of the Audit Committee 4. BEREEEEFE

5. Chairperson of the Nomination Committee 5 RRBZECER

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of the Executive Directors in compliance
with code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and
is satisfied that each Director has been spending sufficient time
in performing his/her responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well
as all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting.
For all other board meetings, reasonable notice was given.
Board papers and related materials which provide appropriate,
accurate, clear, complete and reliable information are generally
sent to all Directors and relevant committee members at least
3 days before each Board meeting and Board Committee
meeting (on other agreed period) to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in
sufficient details the matters considered and decisions reached,
with draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors for
their comment and records respectively, within reasonable time
after the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being
kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any
reasonable time with reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting. INEDs,
who, and whose close associates have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have been
delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees as at 30 September
2021 are set out below:

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 18 November 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chairperson of the
Committee), Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa and Ms. Pearl
Chan. The primary duties of the Executive Committee are
(a) formulating business policies and making decision
(including entering into transactions) on matters relating to
the management and day-to-day operations of the Group;
(b) making and reviewing corporate/financial/treasury
planning, investment and operation strategy of the Group;
(c) discussing and approving any financial, borrowing,
charging and guarantee commitment to be made or on
behalf of the Group; (d) approving transactions, including
discloseable transactions, exempt connected transactions
and non-exempt continuing connected transactions which
took place from time to time under the master agreement(s)
previously approved by the Board/Shareholders (as the
case may be) under the Listing Rules; and (e) approving any
publication of the relevant announcement for discloseable
transaction in relation to lease transaction recognizing the
right-of-use assets by the Company as a lessee according
to HKFRS 16 Leases; and (f) having all power and authorities
of the Board except those matters specifically reserved for
the full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule on matters
reserved for and delegated by the Board” adopted by the
Board from time to time.
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Audit Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Poon Yan Wai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chu Kar
Wing and Ms. Wan Choi Ha.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible
for (a) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor; (b) reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process; (c) approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial
information and overseeing the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee held three meetings during the Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting policies and principles
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 30 September 2020 (“Previous
Year”) and the interim consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 31 March 2021;

i. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

iii.  performed annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the
Previous Year;

iv. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8 February 2021 (“2021 AGM”);
and

v. approved the audit plan for the Previous Year,
reviewed the independence of external auditor and
approved its engagement.
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3.  Remuneration Committee (set up on 1 March 2007) 3. FHEZES=Z(R2007%351H/K)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, YMEZESHR —RKEHEK - EH R
namely Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Chairman of the Committee) BRENIFATEERAZREE(ZE
and Mr. Poon Yan Wai, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy SXFE ) EECELENESRKE
Yeung, being the Managing Director. HH L -

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration FMEZEe s ARERBESE TN
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock BRI RARNEMEER - HFWEE
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee X EZAEM(QARACEETRER
is primarily responsible for making recommendation to BB ZMAFHFMNBE KRB (b)
the Board on (a) the Company’s policies and structure BN IEHITES ZHM - K (c)ERIE
of all remuneration of Directors and senior management; TEENEHREEBZ ABFMES
(b) the remuneration of INEDs; and (c) the specific MESSRHHEEBER - AFERE
remuneration packages for individual Executive Directors EEHEMFBEN A B mRERMTT
and senior management. Details of the remuneration of 11 FMEBEENAFEARNRIT—X
each of the Directors for the Year are set out in note 11 to e o

the consolidated financial statements. The Remuneration
Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration RAFEAN  FNEZEGMETZLT

Committee during the Year is set out as follows: TEREH 0T -

i.  reviewedthe Directors’fees and made recommendation . RBRIESHSITRESIREMG
to the Board for approval; and HERERARIE &

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package i. WMENRTESTEaRAEEEZ
of the Executive Directors and senior management BREMEEF8BKFE I
and recommended the Board to approve their specific MM EREZEBHFMNFER
packages. EEgiEfEs o
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Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Chu Kar Wing, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy
Yeung, being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing
the Board Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy for
the nomination of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and
identifying potential candidates for directorship; (d)
assessing the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing the
time commitment of each Director in performing his/her
responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election or
re-designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board,

i. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;
and

iv. made recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of Directors at the 2021 AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution of any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director that will
bring to the Board against the objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board that would
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

4.
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Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted the Nomination Policy of the
Group which aims at assisting the Nomination Committee
in identifying and nominating suitable candidates for
directorship based on the Board Diversity Policy and sets
out the nomination criteria and the nomination procedures
for (i) nominating new Director to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board (ii) making recommendation to Shareholders
regarding any Director for election or re-election of Director
at general meeting; and (iii) nomination by Shareholders
on election of new Director.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”) consists
of five members, namely Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa
(Chairperson of the Committee) being an Executive Director,
Mr. Poon Yan Wai and Ms. Wan Choi Ha, both being INEDs,
a representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CGC is
available on the Company’s website. The primary duties
of the CGC are (a) reviewing the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company (“CG Policy”)
and making recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (c)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the Group
on dealings with the Company’s securities; (d) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and (e)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report. The CGC held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the CGC during the
Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed on Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.
Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for
ensuring good information flow within the Board and ensuring
that the Board policy and procedures are followed. She is
responsible for advising the Board on general duties and
obligations of Directors and good corporate governance issues,
and has facilitated induction and professional development of
the Directors. She has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly
complied with the relevant training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (“‘ECG Securities Code”)
on no less exacting terms than the required standards as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules regarding the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry to all Directors,
all of them confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code and ECG
Securities Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects as at the reporting
date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Board has adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgment and estimates that
were prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements were prepared on a “going concern” basis
(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group for the Year. The management had provided sufficient
explanation and information to the Board on the consolidated
financial statements to enable it to make an informed assessment
of the financial and other information put before it for approval.
The auditors of the Company had made a statement about their
reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL R EER K IHE

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and A EFESIE T INEER B 25 EE2 &
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company i @ ABIABIEREEBRE - AEBE Y
in achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies NEFEEIEE NIRFEHEH - SE AR
and procedures within the Group are updated regularly with BREERANTELEZG([ERRER )2 HE
the primary objective of providing general guidance and ZAiEZRIZ{E—f&IES| KRiE= -
recommendations on a basic framework of risk management

and internal control systems (“Control Systems”).

A. Goals and objectives A. RERBE
The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group EECHERRAKBRLRERSE
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective Control ERBUZEERG - ZERHE
Systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than BIEMIEBERAREENEBEZR R
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and % WiE A FLEKNSERMRIM B K IR
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance HEEMIERERE o

against material misstatement or losses.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include: EREZGcTEBERE

e  safeguarding assets; e (REEEE:

e ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of e WMRUBEHEBEZZTE
financial records and reports; M EEE R AR

e promoting adherence to policies, procedures, o (REEBTHE  EF - ROIK
regulations and laws; and AR K&

e promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations. o (RELEZAMERISHIE

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal ERRUATARETR - ((VAEEZ

control measures and procedures covering all material NE xR RIET - BEFTBEENX

controls, including financial, operational and compliance B BERE - 2ELRERER:

controls; and (ii) risk management functions in its principal RNVARBREEMB AR ARER

subsidiaries of the Company. Bige o
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B.

*XERWME

Governance Control

The control structure of the Control Systems is set out as
follows:

The Board

responsible for the overall Control Systems and
reviewing their effectiveness;

oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of the Audit Committee;

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective
Control Systems;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk
that the Group is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the management
has performed its duty to have effective Control
Systems. This discussion includes the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group‘s accounting
and financial reporting functions; and

consider major findings on internal control matters
(if any) raised by external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board.
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The management (including heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

design, implement and maintain the Control Systems
properly and ensure the Control Systems are executed
effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or external
auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness
of the Control Systems.

Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control
Systems in respect of all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance aspects;

alert the management on the audit review findings or
irregularities and advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the internal
controls of the Group; and

report the results of internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans to the Audit Committee and the Board
on regular basis.
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C. Risk management C. ERER
(1) Risk Management Process (1) BEREZEZEF

The risk management process includes risk ﬂﬁﬁ%fiiﬂ’& BERREAN -

identification, risk evaluation, risk management Al RREEEREER

measures and risk control and review. ﬁEﬁ? NAgas o

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, %E@@%%@Jﬁ HEAKLED

analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate %EIWE%EU . Tﬁ FfE - BB

risks associated with any activity, function or process EIIE &ELE@EH EE) -
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks E‘ﬁ“i&fﬁﬁ%ﬂ e o EFE
are also evaluated by the Board and the management NEBENRE T REZHET

based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risks on B ET G ¢ ()RR AR E E B

the Group’s financial results; (i) the probability and %%% L7 BRERRE (i) AR

frequency that the risks will occur; and (iii) the velocity IR 2 TR R BEER ¢ K (iii) &

or speed at which risks could occur. PpEs i 2 RE o

Based on the risk evaluation, the Group will manage BERERFE  ~AEEHEE

the risks as follows: BBz

e  Riskelimination — The management may identify . SHBRE Y — EIEE A 355
and implement certain changes or controls that )32 a)ﬁﬂzE:F a1
in effect eliminate the risk entirelty. 24 Fahok By -

e Risk mitigation — The management may implement e RERR-EEEER
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood, e {EC B\ Bz 51 21 DA 8 [ B
velocity or severity of the risk to an acceptable level Roe  RENEER
or contingency plan for possible loss scenarios. EMIT& 77K S 3x % R]

BEH IR 2 BRI R & E e

e Riskcontrol and monitoring - It involves making e RERBEEREE-HIKL
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable 9 ] B A [ Bax K g {a] E
and how to address those that are not. Accidents TR EEMEELIRTE - &
and other situations involving loss or near-loss P48 55 S e L 35 AR 2K Y
will be investigated and properly documented EWMEREMBELEHAS
as part of the effort to manage risks. NEZRBILSE  1ERENE

BRkz—&5

e Risk retention — The management may decide that e HFEERKAKE-BTEERF
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable e 8 70 L B R AR B MR
level and no action is required and the risk will K 2\ B B8 1] #2 X K i B
continue to be monitored as part of the risk éﬁ?"ﬁﬂﬂﬁa M s ERR
management program to ensure the level of risk RERE 2 — &
does not increase to an unacceptable level. Hﬂ%ﬁﬁ 52 2 fes DA B AR R

2LEAETAEZK
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(2) Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessments.
Such significant risks of the Group and their respective
key levels and key control measures are set out below:

(i)

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFE A&

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the borrower or
counterparty may fail to perform its obligation
to pay in a timely manner, or that its ability to
perform such obligation may get impaired before
delivery date.

The Group’s Credit Committee, the ultimate
credit decision-making organ of the Group, is
responsible for putting in place credit policies
and procedures for approving margin financing
and lending portfolio as well as debt recovery
procedures to ensure prompt and effective
recovery of outstanding debts. The Credit
Committee meets both regularly and timely to
review the development and status of past due
accounts and to ensure appropriate actions are
taken in a timely manner. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk lies mainly in two areas:

a) Margin financing

The customers’ trading of securities or
futures may expose the Group to risk arising
from price volatility which may reduce the
customers’ ability to meet their obligations.
The Credit Committee will prescribe from
time to time the lending limits on individual
stock or on any individual customers and
their respective associates by considering
their creditworthiness, financial strength and
the size of their positions or commitments
for the purpose of monitoring the customer
concentration risk and stock concentration
risk.

EERAF
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The Credit and Risk Control Department
(“CRC Department”) is responsible for
the daily monitoring of the changes in
customers’ positions, their accounts and
financing ratios; to observe strictly the
approved financing and credit policies;
to make margin calls and perform forced
liquidation, where appropriate; to report
to the management regularly and when
abnormalities arise; to closely monitor the
unusual movements and trading halts of
stocks and timely identify non-performing
debts; and to demand higher margin
requirements and step up risk control for
particular customers or products, where
appropriate.

The Group has set up policies on customer
concentration risk and stock concentration
risk. The CRC Department will monitor the
concentration of credit risk and regularly
perform stress tests to assess the Group’s
credit risk exposure and capital adequacy
and to report anomaly or any unusual price
movements of customers’ stock positions.
As at 30 September 2021, the receivable
balances due from the largest client and
five largest clients represented 14.7% and
38.7% of the total receivables from margin
financing respectively.

Lending portfolio

All loans and advances are subject to
credit analysis, borrower’s due diligence,
risk assessment and are approved by
the management according to the credit
policies set by the Credit Committee. The
Loans Operation Department is tasked with
the daily monitoring of exposures for loans
and advances. As at 30 September 2021,
the loans receivables due from the largest
client and five largest clients represented
7.1% and 19.7% of the total loans and
advances respectively.
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(ii)

(iii)

Moreover, the Internal Audit Department
also conducts independent reviews on
the adequacy and effectiveness of these
policies and controls to ensure that the
Group is operating according to the
established policies, procedures and credit
limits.

Equity Risk

Equity risk arises from fluctuation in the price
and volatility of equities such as stocks, equity
portfolio and stock index futures. The Group does
not have proprietary equity investments. On the
other hand, the Group may be subject to exposure
arising from the underwriting commitments. The
Group mitigates its risks by conducting detailed
analysis of the issuer’s fundamentals and pricing
against market conditions and appetites. Such
risk exposure is also reduced by way of internal
sales and distribution and by sub-underwritings.

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s financing business is a capital
intensive business which may be subject to
liquidity risk. As part of its ordinary brokerage
activities, the Group is also exposed to liquidity
risk arising from timing difference between
settlements with clearing houses or brokers and
customers. The goal of liquidity risk management
is to ensure the Group maintains adequate liquid
capital to fund its business commitments as
well as to comply with the relevant Financial
Resources Rules applying to various licensed
subsidiaries.

To address the liquidity risk, the Group’s Finance
and Accounts Department and the management
will review and monitor the Group’s liquidity
position on daily basis to ensure availability of
sufficient liquid funds. In addition, the Group
has maintained sufficient stand-by banking and
other facilities in order to meet any contingency
in its operations. The management believes the
Group’s working capital is adequate to meet its
financial obligations.
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(iv) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising
from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems or external events. The
Group extends operational risk management
to cover potential losses arising from legal
and compliance breaches. Operational risk is
reduced and controlled through establishing
effective internal controls, clear lines of
responsibility, proper segregation of duties
and effective internal reporting and contingency
planning. It is our corporate culture that the
business and operating line management are
fully aware of their responsibilities for managing
the operational risks of their business units on
a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring
and reviews are conducted by the Compliance
Department and the Internal Audit Department,
which report regularly to the management and
the Audit Committee.

(v) Other Risks

Occurrence of any natural disaster or outbreak
of contagious diseases such as COVID-19
pandemic, could adversely affect the Group’s
business and operations. The Group implements
business continuity plans which include “Work
from Home”, “Flexible Working Hours” and “Split-
team Arrangements”; and ensures all safety
measures as required by the Hong Kong SAR
Government are fully implemented.

(3) Due Diligence review performed by the Group in
relation to margin financing, and other loans and
advances

For all financial assistance transactions, responsible
personnel of the Group have taken reasonable steps
verifying the identity of the applicants and guarantors
through examination of identity documents such
as identity cards, passports and address proofs.
Clients’ occupation, business, financial standing and
credit history of the client with the Group were also
considered.

Notwithstanding the standard procedures above, the
Group performed various due diligence exercises
according to different natures of financial assistance.

(3)

(iv) EEER
LERRANIRE - A
B - ZAF;AINBEH 2T
RSB MEKE L 2R
& o AEBEBEERKRE
B - LUREE AR
KIBHIATRER R 2B K -
EERRBBEN AN
ZAE S - BERE
HERBBERERHR
P d & FE 2Rt &l T bARE
ERIES « RMBBEX
bREBREEFETIEE
O THRESHRE - £H
BEBLEEREXKE
& ERR - BUEE
kEEREHRIBPIERAE
FEAZBOPIHELT - R FEP
THREEEMEZZE

gWmE -

(v) EtE
BETME AL ERER
RIE (20198 R E S
RRIE ) ge AR EE %
BREBEBENTFFEE o
NEBEHERFELR
2 BEIERER]-
B TR I [ IFDE
B EE ] RIBRFTED BN
EBBFIITHREBITRE
MFTBE L2 o

FEERFRBE - Rt E M
RBFEHTHERAE

BT EMBENRSME -
AEBBEABCDERAEY
BoooBBmERhE - ERAM
o U 78 AR < & 10 8 B SO AR
ERBARERANSD - R
SEBEPHMBE - X% M
BAVAMN AR BN EERCE -

BERALAERERF A%
EREBENRNTBEBIEE R
TEEREAS -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT

ANNUAL REPORT £ ¥ 2020/2021

53



54

For mortgage loans, the Group engaged no less
than two independent property valuers to appraise
the value of pledged properties. Land records were
obtained from Land Registry in order to ascertain the
registered owner of the property and incumbrances
registered against it.

For margin financing business, the Group analysed
the relevant underlying securities in accordance
with price histories, trading performances, trading
prospects and fundamentals of the collateral. The
Group also considered public financial information in
the case of listed securities. The margin clients were
required to deposit their securities, and undertook to
maintain certain position with the Group and personal
guarantees provided by ultimate beneficial owners
were required in case of corporate borrowers. The
Group had daily monitoring of the share and financial
performances of the listed companies for default
events.

For term loans, in the event that the clients deposited
and undertook to maintain securities under the Group’s
custody, the Group performed the same due diligence
works as margin financing business. The clients may
also be required to provide the Group with other
securities when the needs arise based on latest credit
assessment conducted from time to time.

The Credit Committee also takes into consideration
existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial, or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change in the borrower’s ability
to meet its debt obligation; potential changes in the
borrower’s ability to meet its debt obligation; external
market credit risk indicators for collaterals with similar
characteristics; and significant changes in the value
of the collateral supporting the obligation or credit
enhancement. Lastly, on-premise and face-to-face
verification is required before entering agreement
relating to provision of financial assistance.
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D. Internal Control
(1) Operational Control

The management is responsible for analysing the
control environment, identifying risks pertaining
thereto, and implementing various controls therein.

° Approach taken: The management conducts
interview with relevant staff members, reviews
relevant documentation of the Control System
and evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the
design of the Group’s internal control system,
provides recommendations for improvement and
assesses the effectiveness of implementation
of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and Control Systems will be
reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
annually.

o Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also
act as a detecting device for spotting unusual
activities.

° Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records in compliance with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use and/
or external publication.
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Management information system and
technology: To control over the business
activities, it allows close tracking of various
inputs and outputs of the Group’s business such
as human resources, product offerings, lending
portfolio and customer information. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorisation system,
under which permissions and responsibility of
authorisation are clearly identified and adequate
records can be maintained in the Control
Systems.

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each operating segment in the
upstream, midstream and downstream are
conducted on a regular basis such that the
performance of each operating segment can
be easily accessible.

(2) Financial Controls

proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on all
capital and revenue items are prepared and
approved by the management before being
adopted;

the management monitors the business activities
closely and reviews monthly financial results of
operations against budgets/forecast;

regular reports on revenue, trade receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal financial
reports are prepared to the management which
give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;
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annual audit by external auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations; and

daily available fund report is reviewed to monitor
the cash flows against budgets/forecast.

(3) Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in place
to safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure
of Inside Information to ensure, with the
assistance of internal work team (if required),
that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any one or more officers should
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated,
where appropriate, for the attention of the Board.
The Board shall make timely decisions on
disclosure, if necessary, and take appropriate
measures to preserve confidentiality of inside
information until proper dissemination of the
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated
by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Company and ensure
proper compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations and the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters. Such arrangement
will be reviewed by the Audit Committee which
ensures that proper arrangement is in place for
fair and independent investigation of the matters;
and
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o Anti-money Laundering and Counter-
terrorist Financing Policy and Procedures is
established to set out the general framework
for combating against money laundering and
financing of terrorism. It provides guideline to
prevent the Group’s employees and clients/
customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors from
being misused for money laundering, terrorist
financing or other financial crime and has set
out some indications of potentially suspicious
transactions/activities for employees’ reference.

E. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Control
Systems of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board
had reviewed the Control Systems and were not aware of
any significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Control Systems.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders and/or potential investors mainly in the following
ways: (i) the holding of annual general meeting (*AGM”) and
special general meetings (“SGM”), if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities for
the Shareholders to communicate directly to the Board; (ii) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press
release providing updated information of the Group; (iii) the
availability of latest information of the Group on the Company’s
website at https://www.EmperorCapital.com; (iv) the holding
of press conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting with
investors and analysts on a regular basis and participate investor
road show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this report.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2021
AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and notices of all other general meetings
are sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before
the meetings.

Ms. Daisy Yeung who is deemed to be the Chairperson of
the Board and of 2021 AGM, chairman/members of the Board
Committees and the external auditors were available to attend
the 2021 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of
the meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll
voting during the meeting.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting out
the principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and final
dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings attribution
to its Shareholders after taking into consideration of the factors
stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements
for business operations; (ii) cash available, financial liabilities
and capital commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities. The
declaration of dividends or recommendation on such payment
shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations
including but not limited to the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), applicable
laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

Right to Convene/Call General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to
submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (i) must state the object(s) of
the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for attention of the Company Secretary, and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with
the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon
its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition has been verified as not in order, the requisitionists
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the SGM will
not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for
a day not more than two months after the date of deposit of a
proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date
of deposit of the requisition. In addition, such meeting convened
by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened
by the Board.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
ANNUAL REPORT £ ¥ 2020/2021

IR R Z R

REBOXREATRAATHREZE TIRRE
MEEZEIIAT -

B BERRAE ZEF

BRIEAREISGIFAGERARRZER
MA) - NIE2FKBH  BEARARWNE
BEMATRARRBRREARSIREZE BHEHK
ARDRTD2Z—(10%) 8 —Z 5% 2%
RRBEREXREERARK  UERkEFE
BRBREFNARE - EMHEKG)AEINBPKX
EHER R()VEREBARELEIAN
RARBBZ EBLH£ I (FERKHEAR
NEIRME) - I A] A ED R A S
MK MBHHA—RBREZEZEFARE -
BB RBEHARRZEBRMDBEER
DERIZE  MEABREERIBLZER
HE  AAMERBERESETSLHTEER
HERBAH  LWEARKRREIKRE - &
2 NEBBRKEZEATHEERER - 8l
EBABERMEBER - MRERERIK
R TERERERH -

HRIERRFR A HEE21HA - BEERE
HZ & LR IEERZ B B BHED
BBmEAz BMAERREREN RS -
AIZFAN(RETRHARSTERARZE—
FUAEZERAL) A B AFRBRERRRIA
g EERBRL AR KRR AEH T
SR L AUER B A B ET 318 A fEimik 8
17 o WO 2FABRZRKSATEN
HEFRSARASGHERZTAAM -



A S N

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREREE

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all
the Requisitionists must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition Provided that an
AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
has been deposited, such requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements
in accordance with applicable standards. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditors,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is independent and had
recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s
auditors at the 2022 AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu has rendered audit services and certain non-
audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable
to it by the Group is set out as follows:

Services rendered

FriZ AR 3%

Audit services

B AR

Non-audit services

FEIZBR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
1B M B BAT R S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 179,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 September 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
September 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HEETEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BfzEt M EERARET SR

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Model on loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin
clients (collectively referred to as the “Advances to Customers”)

BHERRBHIREREGEAFREF R (BB AEF25 ) EARHEEER ([FAREEER)EL

We identified the impairment of Advances to Customers
(other than the impairment in stage 3), arising from the
application of the ECL Model under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”), as a key audit matter due
to the significant judgment and estimation made by
management to determine the ECL amount at the
reporting date.
HASGERATEMHREERESRIeMIA] ([F
B BEHRELEREIR DREABREEBFSBREAME
EREPBEFRE(NE=ERRERIN BRRERE
BAEE WIHRETRERNCABREEERERESE
RNHEEEREELERHAE RMEE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the ECL measurement involves significant
management judgement and estimation, with the
involvement of the Group’s external specialist, in (i)
the selection of appropriate models and key inputs
used in the ECL model, including the probability of
default (“PD”) and loss given default (“LGD”), (ii) the
determination of the criteria for significant increase
in credit risk (“SICR”) and (iii) the selection and
use of reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information available without undue cost or effort in
the ECL model to estimate the future movement of
different economic drivers and how these drivers will
affect each other and the correlation with the key
inputs, including PD and LGD.
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ERERBERETNVEZ ANMABERTEEMAEH
BEIEHMEMLEES @ UMAFTTRELERBEZEZ AR
RE B AN ZE R Z A ERTE R EE g AR
BEEENOMXLEZOER) DAERE -

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
Advances to Customers included:

BPIMBREREPBR ZBERTHNEREF B

- Understanding the Group’s established credit
risk policies and procedures for impairment
assessment in relation to the application of ECL
model under HKFRS 9, including model set up
and approval and selection and application of
assumptions and key inputs into the model,

-  THESERAGEERRBEKMLERTEMBR
HEAFEFIA N FEMEEBHBEEANREFN G
Fr BREEXNRZLEL  BELERMARN
B R AR M R S ) A\ B -

- Understanding the key controls over ongoing
monitoring processes, including:
- THREEERARENTIEER B

(i) the process of margin call procedures
for margin shortfall and actions taken by
management for those accounts receivable
from margin clients arising from the business
of dealing in securities with margin call;

() ’ETERETHEBBRERREFRER
ERREEFEEXBMARINRES ZIE
W R & P BRI ERERTT N VAR F

(i) the process of periodic reviews for
identification of any indications of
deterioration of the creditability of borrowers
through searching of publicly available
information and any delinquency in loans or
interest repayment for loans and advances;

(i) MERNBFEBESARASERETE
RAEEBRBI(b R R E R F BB
PRz EHIERIER

REFHFEEERAT



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
1B M B BAT R S

Key Audit Matters (continued) BRETSEE)

Key audit matter (continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BEEITEEHE BB UMEERRETEEH(E

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Model on loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin
clients (collectively referred to as the “Advances to Customers”) (continued)

HHEARBHAREREEAFREF IR (BB AEFB ) EARHEEER([FREEER)EL(E)

The management further assesses whether there has -
been a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) for

Assessing  the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the management’s

exposures since initial recognition. If there has been a
SICR, the Group will measure the loss allowance based
on lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased, the Group takes into account qualitative
and quantitative, reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information available without undue cost or
effort with significant judgement involved.
ERBE-—SHAERILBIALCEER RIS RAEL
me MEERREEEN  SEEGRESHEANES
EiEMmIE12{f A A BE S EE 8B EREE - RNefh—
BHEEZFERRESBEELE NG  EXEZEBERR
BANEANYN ARG E N MEE 2 & EMA R4
BIEBBENAEEES BT RERFEG -

The total gross amount of (i) loans and advances
and (ii) accounts receivable from secured margin
clients under stages 1 and 2 as at 30 September
2021 are HK$1,653,968,000 and HK$497,689,000 less
impairment loss of HK$6,219,000 and HK$3,777,000
respectively. Please see notes 22, 23 and 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

202169 HA30H  F—RE_RERBBTH()EXK
RBaRER(HWEWEERAFREPERESESFIA
1,653,968,0007% 7T 12 497,689,000/ 7T, * Al A& B B8
516,219,000/ 7T 3,777,000/ 7T © 52 B4R A BT 15
HEMIEE22 « 23%40 °

judgement on staging criteria for determining if
SICR has occurred (stage 1 or 2) or the financial
asset is credit-impaired (stage 3) and the basis
for classification of exposures into the 3 stages as
required by HKFRS 9 and examining supporting
information on a sample basis to assess the
appropriateness of the classification of loan
exposures as at the end of the reporting period;
MEERENETeA LR EERARBEZEEM (B
—HFE_[ER) XEeMEESSCEERE (=
PEER) EVPE ERZEBILA RARE B B 75 5 E BI 95
PITAR TE 18 @B 53 4R 5 = (IR BR Y ERE PR IR Y &
BURAEN - ARMEZEERER AT R
SHRNERAR S ENRE M

Evaluating, together with our internal
valuation specialists, the reasonableness
and appropriateness of the ECL models and
assumptions, information and parameters used
in the model including establishing the forward
looking factors, and the relationship between
the forward looking factors and the key inputs,
including PD and LGD, in the ECL model to
determine the impairment loss of Advances to
Customers in stage 1 or 2;
HEEFMHOABEESHRAEEHEERERREA L
BAFANRR  ERR2H (BIEETAET
Hx=) feBMREEN - RiATEREEEIRR
AARIEEREZREBRE AR (BREOBER
BAEE) OEEFR  WEEE —HE_RRHOAT
FEREREEE

Assessing the competence and independence of
the third party specialists engaged by the Group
and their experience in conducting similar ECL
computation; and
HEEEBEZRRE 2 E=7THERK N BT IEAKR
REETRUEREEFEAE LR &

Testing the accuracy and completeness of key
data sources applied in the ECL computation
on a sample basis by checking to the Group’s
supporting information, the relevant loan files and
external data source, as applicable.
FEZEEEEMRBAERER RIMNFEEIOR (40
WA) BFBAER - MEBISERANEREEER
TE AR B R E R R e B -
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ANNUAL REPORT £ ¥ 2020/2021

65



66

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

RRESEHE(E

Impairment of Advances to Customers at Stage 3
RE=ZERZ [EEFF BB E

We identified the impairment of Advances to Customers
at Stage 3 as a key audit matter due to the involvement
of significant management estimation in determining
the ECL amount.
HABRE=ERAEFBAFRERR S —AMEE
AEREEMARETRREEFEZERIRERE
BREfhE -

In assessing the lifetime ECL on Advances to
Customers classified as stage 3, the Group performed
the assessment based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the borrowers, general economic conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions with significant judgment involved. The
Group also reviewed the fair value of the collateral
received from the customers in determining the
impairment. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
RIFEDBERE=-EROAZTFPERNEHIEREEE
BE > EEERBEESENBTEEEFERSRETH
il WIRRERANBTERE - RS BHNBRBEH
ARRFARMRTEBEITRE - PP RERHE - &
SETRETREREHNEREFPNERMATE -
AARRERREN T EMERMAN T ERRRHEE
HEH - AREBEATERERBRLRIESR

As set out in notes 22, 23, and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, the total gross amount as at 30
September 2021 of (i) loans and advances and (ii)
accounts receivable from secured margin clients
amounted to HK$3,537,461,000 and HK$3,594,507,000
respectively, of which HK$1,883,493,000 and
HK$3,096,818,000 respectively are classified as Stage 3.
WUNGR A B IS HRERMIsE22 - 23 % 40F7#, - 20214 9A4
308 WEFRRBFL(NEWEERFREPERES
#5711 7%3,537,461,000/8 7T %.3,594,507,000/8 7T * H
#11,883,493,0007% 7T 12 3,096,818,000/& 77 5l 2 ¥ 4
FE=FEER -

REETEERE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BEM B UMEERARENSE(E)

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
Advances to Customers at Stage 3 included those
covered in the above key audit matter related to ECL
model and the following additional procedures:

B EERE =EROAZFPETRENTHREFE
BENEREREERERANERETFERES
AR TBIRRIMEFF

- Corroborating and challenging management’s
assessment and key estimations used in
determining expectation of reasonably possible
outcomes on the recoverability of the loans to
the borrower against our understanding of the
situation and the industries of the borrowers or
guarantor and collateral, if any, from reading
public announcements and other externally
available information; and

- BEMEBEHAEREMIMNIATFEREERA
FERANEERE (0F) OBERKRETES
AR BENEREEEETRROERANER
Y& B Al Be 4 R TEHAPR A B0 RT A4 SR RS (fET « I

- Examining underlying documentation supporting
the management’s key estimations used in
determining the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, including the historical
repaymentrecords and any settlement subsequent
to the end of the reporting period, fair value of the
collateral, if any, and other information available
for the creditability of those borrowers.

- BREXHEEEETMFGARESREREMRH
SRR - BREELERCEELREHR
‘OEREE Efm (0F) HRFERNEZ
FERANEEBNEMAEER -
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Key Audit Matters (continued) BRETSEE)

Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

WEREEE() BB AR ERRENEE(H)

Impairment of Advances to Customers at Stage 3 (continued)
REZERZMEF B EEE)

Impairment allowances of HK$1,020,230,000 and - Examining the estimated future cash flows and
HK$2,379,213,000 have been provided in relation to (i) the fair value of collateral together with our own
loans and advances and (ii) accounts receivable from internal valuation specialists, where appropriate,
secured margin clients under stage 3, respectively, including:

as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial - — BERMAHABPEBEZRZEGBTRKRRESRE LK
statements. AR ATE (ER) - 8 :

SN A B R T A0FHE CRESRBE T N ,

(WER KB (i) Y B B AR E P RRGHERE R *  Obtaining the appraisal reports and
#% 5111,020,230,000/% 7t 1 2,379,213,000/ 7T assessing the competence and

independence of the third party professional
valuers and their experience in conducting
valuation of similar assets;

o BEEGTRIRE WA E =7 HEEMERIAAE
Zg%éﬁﬁ’l‘iu&?}i%%%ﬁ@ﬁ%i&?ﬂﬁﬁﬂ@
K EL

° Assessing whether the selection of the
valuation methodology is appropriate for
the collateral; and

o  HEREMRERNGBENEIRESEE K

o Evaluating the appropriateness of key
inputs used in the valuation of the collateral
by independently checking to the external
data and publicly available information.

o  EABUMBINPEIERAFAIEER - T
R EMMARREABERNRE N

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
ANNUAL REPORT £ ¥ 2020/2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
1B M B BAT R S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

ZEE R ET S M RAEN
==

BEF

B BEEZE  RYGAUBHREEELT
FAEBNIRFE IR M BB 8 KSR Rt
BEEEBRE  WIRR(EREAQNREA)EN0
GHEFTER2ERIREERERMERDN
ZEENIRE o BRULUASN - FPIE SRS T 7] B
TEEMAR - BT ARE 2 AEEHMT
A EM A LR EERMETHESTAEL ©
BB REBEEKENRE - BTERFBILRE
(BB ERDEITHET  EE—E= KR
FRPR M IFE RS 4B REEEIR o SEARPR M AT AR X
FESKERERS|HE - MRS BTEH T MEE &
BRI T RE R BIF A MR F A& KB
ERERMEHOELERE - BIABAERMR
MATHARVEE KX ©

ERIECE SRR TR AR -
RIER T LA - RF T FLERE
& o B9

o FRIMFEARRFFHIERMEBIRE
MBHmERFEERERBRMAE R
Rt RBITEZF AL LR -
AR ERRTE & ME & BETERE - 1ER
BMERAER - AREFFAI SRR
®oPE - ERER BERERM %
RBENAEMES 2 £ - R ReEHARR
HREF I G B0 B A SR AR R 0 [ B = A
i%%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%éﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ
VR o

o THREESHRBMAEES - AREHE
EHEIERF  BENTIFHEEER
EREBHBRERRER -

o HEEFMRASIHERNRE ML RE
SRR AN EN AR -

s HEERMABELESIERNRENT
tEH s o ARIBPIERNERE -
HEEAFERSHENBEAARNER
THEEME - e Al sE B S B R B
BREENEEEARE - MREFIR
REEERTHEENE  ABEER
BRED SRS P IRBE M E LB A M B ]R
RPHEBANE - REABOEKET
B RIRMEZERIFERESR -
B A 2 BN IR BRED #R & A LEFTEL
SHEGE - A - KRFBEKE
MR B ERBETRFELE -
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tong, Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 December 2021

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEEkEMEERSE X

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

Notes
iz

Revenue WA

Commission and fee income & & & FUA 6

Interest income FI| 8 UZA 6
Other income and gains or losses E WA &zl EE 7
Impairment allowances on financial assets, net of reversal 8
TREEMERE - HkRED
Impairment allowance on property and equipment 17
M KR 2 RE B
Impairment allowance on right-of-use assets 18
CREEEZRERE
Staff costs B T4 9
Commission and fee expenses & R FEES H
Other expenses H 3z H 13
Finance costs 81 7% 10
Share of profit of an associate &5 — & A 7] 2 5 20
Loss before tax BrRFLATE 18 13
Income tax expense FT{SHiBI X 14
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
ARABDEEARGFESE
Other comprehensive income (expense) B2 EH# iz (FI5)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
HigrgeEMnBERR AR ¢

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations

BMEBINEBEE ZER Z5
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year
FEHME2EmEE (FX)
Total comprehensive expense for the year attributable to owners

of the Company
RAGHE ANEGEFEZHER B
Loss per share EREE

Basic A 15

2021
HK$°000
TExT

125,343

551,469
676,812

10,648

(939,302)

(2,833)

(5,577)

(77,883)

(49,364)

(82,691)
(71,516)

146
(541,560)

(34,534)
(576,094)

123

123

(575,971)

2020
HK$'000
THETT

118,051

799,356
917,407

9,924

(1,327,345)

(62,138)
(43,927)
(63,186)
(110,399)

57
(679,607)

(10,140)
(689,747)

(166)

(166)

(689,913)

G IEEEEN HK(10.23) cents

Al

7l

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ 3 2020/2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR OR R

At 30 September 2021 7202149 A30H

Non-current assets ¥ FREEE

Notes

B &

Property and equipment 12 K & 17

Right-of-use assets fF FAEEE 18

Intangible assets #f & E 19

Interest in an associate 7 —fE## & QA &2 20

Amount due from an associate fE— & R FFIE 20

Other assets Hfh &&= 21

Loans and advances B & #H 22

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 27

FRHMEERRRATEIIRZ R EE

Deferred tax assets iEIERIHE &= 28
Current assets REEE

Accounts receivable F&UBRTK 23

Loans and advances &K #3k 22

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments

Hip IR - & RIERFKRIA

Tax recoverable ] [B] U5 18

Pledged bank deposits — general accounts 24

EEMRITER——RERP

Bank balances and cash — general accounts 25

RITEREES ——REP

Bank balances and cash — segregated accounts 25

RITHEHR LA S —BIKRP

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT

ANNUAL REPORT 4 #§ 2020/2021

2021
HK$°000
FER

3,638
10,126

665,372

690,738

1,391,469
1,845,640

9,107

1,386

160,000

864,062

1,834,598

6,106,262

2020
HK$'000
TAT

7,624

22,759

3,492
7,223

626,683

23,036
690,817

4,338,635
2,632,317

6,933

21,613

160,000

692,032

1,574,525

9,326,055



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B AR OR R
At 30 September 2021 7202149 A30H
2021 2020

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

liEs3 THET FHET

Current liabilities RE& &
Accounts payable FEfERFR 26 1,993,462 1,719,559
Other creditors and accrued charges Efth fE{~ BR X N fE =18 3 55,381 49,617
Tax liabilities FIEE & 13,857 33,061
Lease liabilities HE B & 29 10,492 10,034

Short-term bank borrowings & HiE1TE 30 370,000 2,371,000

Bonds issued 2 #&1TEH 31 499,080 399,281
2,942,272 4,582,552

Net current assets R EEE R E 3,163,990 4,743,503
Total assets less current liabilities 2 & E R R BB & 3,854,728 5,434,320
Non-current liabilities J R B & &

Lease liabilities HE & & 29 5,086 13,384

Bonds issued EE&1TEH 31 - 995,323
5,086 1,008,707

Net assets EEFE 3,849,642 4,425,613
Capital and reserves EA K f# &

Share capital fx 7 32 67,408 67,408

Reserves i 3,782,234 4,358,205
Total equity #EZ#EE 3,849,642 4,425,613

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 179 were EE &/ 2021F12 530 H it/ L Z#EHIENSE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 71BZ 1798 ZiRE& M B Mk - WH T

30 December 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: BEERREFTGEE
DAISY YEUNG CHOI SUK HING, LOUISA
B B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXRSFEBEHBR A T
ANNUAL REPORT £ 3 2020/2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—IPAN 3L 4=
e ER
For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
Attrib

utable to owners of the Company

LSAGIE LN 3
Capital

Share Share Special contribution Translation  Retained

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BE  ROEE  KHRE EXEARE ARRE  REEN At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEn TEn TEn TEx TEn TEx TEx

At 1 October 2019 H2019510A1H 67,408 3,199,289

Loss for the year EEE 1 - -

9,950 2,004 (27) 1,836,902 5,115,526

- - - (689,747)  (689,747)

Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - - (166) - (166)
EREMZERX
At 30 September 2020 742020597308 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (193) 1,147,155 4,425,613

Loss for the year FE & - -

- - ~ (576,004)  (576,004)

Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 128 - 123
EREMZENE
At 30 September 2021 72021594308 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (70) 571,061 3,849,642

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiary of the Company in
issue and the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a group reorganisation
on 2 April 2007.

Capital contribution reserve represents the deemed contribution
arising from a fellow subsidiary waiving certain amount of
management fee in previous years.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% 58

Loss before tax BrFia1E 18

Adjustments for: FH% :
Finance costs 8175 % A
Interest income F| EUA
Depreciation of property and equipment ¥7% M :& & 2 T &
Depreciation for right-of-use assets & RIEEE 2 T &E
Share of profit of an associate &5 — & A 7] 2 & Fll

Impairment allowances on financial assets, net of reversal

SREE ZRERE - MERER
Impairment allowance on property and equipment ¥ % & & & 2 BB
Impairment allowance on right-of-use assets {# A& & 2 il (B

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
LEESHPANCRERERE

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable FEUWBRR 2354 (38 HN)
(Increase) decrease in other assets E & & 2~ (3 h0) & 2>
Decrease (increase) in loans and advances & & 83 2 A (340)

(Increase) decrease in other debtors, deposits and prepayments

Hip EUBRR - & RIERFKRIBZ (B8 0) R 4

Increase in bank balances and cash — segregated accounts
IRITESBNIE S —BIRE &M

Increase in accounts payable & BRF 2 10

Increase (decrease) in other creditors and accrued charges

H A0 AR S e AT B A 238 i OBl

Cash generated from (used in) operations K & (FR) €& 2 H 4
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 2 &BFI1SH

PRC Tax paid Bt EI#{IA

Canada Tax refund JIE KR

Interest paid (excluding bond interest) 2 F| 8 (T BIEEHFIS)

Interest received 2 UH] &

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RE(AR)REEBD 2 REFE

2021
HK$°000
TR

(541,560)

71,516
(551,469)

2,759

10,795
(146)

939,302

2,833

5,577
(60,393)

2,288,591
(2,903)
398,381

(2,174)

(260,073)

273,903

31,511

2,666,843
(10,455)
(€15))

18
(16,503)

520,349
3,160,214

2020
HK$'000
TAT

(679,607)

110,399
(799,356)

2,756

11,920
(57)

1,327,345

(26,600)

(1,907,985)
1,648
(416,996)

12,947

(157,829)

155,267

(16,336)

(2,355,884)
(22,813)
(109)
(13,095)

789,879
(1,602,022)

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXHSFEBEHBR AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER
For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
TE&xT TAT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&EE

Purchase of property and equipment B & ¥ % & 35 5 (274) (1,074)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRIEEZE > 5455 (274) (1,074)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& 5EE

Drawdown on bank borrowings f2EURTTE 3,470,000 34,502,200
Repayment of bank borrowings (&£ 1717 (YaW)Y (32,362,373)
Redemption of bonds issued f&[E 2 1T7{&E %5 (899,870) (1,427,975)
Interest paid on bonds issued B #1TEH 2 EFF 8 (75,693) (150,361)
Repayment of lease liabilities (EEHE A& (11,347) (11,871)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (2,987,910) 549,620
(AR)RERMETEBZREFH

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 172,030 (1,053,476)
RERREEEYZEMORL) B8

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 692,032 1,745,508
FIzRERESEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 864,062 692,032
FRZBESRESEEY

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ReRBREEB/Y2ERDW

Bank balances and cash — general accounts $B7T7& 8 MIRE — —REEF 864,062 692,032

Disclosure in relation to the changes in liabilities arising from HAHEEEIZBMEENEBEE 2 RERE
financing activities are detailed in note 35 to the consolidated &M EMmAXMFTISH it -
financial statements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

1.

GENERAL

Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended). The immediate holding company is Emperor
Capital Group Holdings Limited which is a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).
The ultimate holding company is Albert Yeung Capital Holdings
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI. The
entire issued share capital of Albert Yeung Capital Holdings
Limited is in turn held by CDM Trust & Board Services AG,
being the trustee of Albert Yeung Capital Discretionary Trust,
a discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 24 April 2007. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

— ER
REBFHEERERARIARFDNTD
RIEBRE1981F R ALE(EIERT )i
MR RELAEREARAR - B
BEERAFAREZFEEIERERA
A REBREABEESIMAIZER
NAE c BRRERAB BB NEEE
RERATF REBRZAESTMAK
S ZBRATR c BEKEREZEREBRA
Al 2R EBITRABGZKE LRI
W —IAK S5t Albert Yeung Capital
Discretionary Trust Z % 5 A CDM
Trust & Board Services AGH A&

RNATZRADB2007F4 24 BEDE
BEBBAERSMBRAR(THBRAT])E
REM o RARGFMPHEREREELE
eI BERERIARERRE
THE|—F -

RRFREZERRT] « ANRE EEMH
BRAl2 TR EEHNMEST -

REMBHRERISIAET(TETZY -
HISARNRBZEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 October 2020 for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments
provide a new definition of material that states “information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments also
clarify that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements taken
as a whole. The application of the amendments in the current
year had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments*

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework®
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 39, HKFRS 7, - Phase 2!

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
20212

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)*

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies*

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates*

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction*

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?®

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018 - 2020°

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Except for the impact mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
relate to the modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements
and disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures” to accompany the amendments
regarding modifications and hedge accounting.

o Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities. A practical expedient is introduced
for modifications required by the reform (modifications
required as a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and made on an economically
equivalent basis). These modifications are accounted
for by updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the current
HKFRSs requirements. A similar practical expedient is
proposed for lessee accounting applying HKFRS 16;

° Hedge accounting requirements. Under the
amendments, hedge accounting is not discontinued
solely because of the interest rate benchmark reform.
Hedging relationships (and related documentation)
are required to be amended to reflect modifications
to the hedged item, hedging instrument and hedged
risk. Amended hedging relationships should meet all
qualifying criteria to apply hedge accounting, including
effectiveness requirements; and

o Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures in
order to allow users to understand the nature and extent
of risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
to which the Group is exposed to and how the entity
manages those risks as well as the entity’s progress in
transitioning from interbank offered rates to alternative
benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing this
transition.

As at 30 September 2021, the Company has several Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) bank loans which
may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The Group
expects no significant gains or losses should the interest rate
benchmark for these loans change resulting from the reform
on application of the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities
as current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that:

(i)  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date;
and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-current only if
the entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 30
September, the application of the amendments will not result
in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must instead be
estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting
policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use of
judgements or assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates
in HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loss
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses
of associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interest in an associate (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate, and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liabilities relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such as
sponsoring service fee and performance fee from asset
management services, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount, which better predicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment
of whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in circumstances during
the reporting period.

Description of the Group’s performance obligation of main
source of income under the scope of HKFRS 15 are as follows:

Brokerage

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities, futures and options contracts. Commission income
is recognised at a point in time on the execution date of the
trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value of the
trades executed. The Group provides custodian and handling
services for securities, futures and options customer accounts.
Fee income is recognised when the transaction is executed
and service is completed (i.e. at a point in time), except for
custodian service fee which is recognised over time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Corporate finance

The Group provides placing, underwriting or sub-underwriting
services to customers for their fund raising activities in equity
and debt capital markets. Revenue is recognised when the
relevant placing, underwriting, subunderwriting are completed.
Accordingly, the revenue is recognised at a point in time.

The Group also provides sponsoring services to clients for
their fund raising activities and corporate advisory services
to corporate clients for their corporate actions. The Group
considers that all the services promised in a particular contract
of being a sponsor or corporate advisor are interdependent
and interrelated and should be therefore accounted for as a
single performance obligation. As there is enforceable right
to payment for the Group for the performance of services
completed up to date based on the contracts with customers
regarding sponsor or corporate advisory services, the revenue
is recognised over time based on the stage of completion of
the contract, the services transferred to customers up to date.

Wealth management

The Group provides wealth management services to
customers. The customers simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group, hence the
revenue is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time. Wealth management fee income is charged at
a fixed percentage per month of the net asset value of the
managed accounts under management of the Group.

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when the
performance meets certain levels in accordance with Private
Placement Memorandum for the relevant performance period
and it is recognised at the end of the relevant performance
period, when it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
ANNUAL REPORT & # 2020/2021

REMBBRR2EREERE
REHBER(E)

EXEFEHEGE)
REEFEHZHKA(E)

aE
AEEBEPRHEBEEARTSMES
EAMBRERHNEE - BHEIDE
HRT - WARBRBES © 83 -2
BT ER o« At - WARFE—
Ry R BA JE AR ©

AEET AR PREREESDRE RS
Rt EREPRHEARITENEEEER
RIS - REBRR  NEERB & D
FEMANNMAEEARREHREN
R REARE - EMEARSE /B
MEME - ARNAEERIEEZFSBRIR
BREXBEEREAOMETESE R
X ARTS TR A MR O RT T THE R - W AAR
‘g5 TR A A R AT ERIRE A
Ex BN RIFERR -

B EEE
AEEARFIREMEEERY - BF
B BF U B R fF R A SR BIR A R 3 -
WA B LS (ERER R B - Bt
EEHBRARAEBETEENEIRE
FEEFENETED LS AU -

AEERREBARBILALSHETRKRE
EPCETKER - AEEINAREREGE
RE - A ERERBEN T ETMERE
‘ER - MEERRFTWASEETK
ﬂgﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁé@ﬁ% - Hi R R IBEIR
"R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of leased properties and machinery and equipment
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured
at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property and equipment (continued)

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payments
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payments reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employment benefit
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
where appropriate, based on approved formulas that take
into consideration the profit attributable to the Group after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

All other short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries, and
annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such grants
are recognised as other income and presented under “other
income and gains or losses”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs, that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit or loss before tax because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
ANNUAL REPORT & # 2020/2021

REMBBRR2EREERE
REHBER(E)

MEERE  ERAEEERER
BEEZRERRE
RBER - NEBESWTEY R LR
- ERREEENMAEBARAERF
B EEZREE  NWEEREH
PRETZEEECHIRERERE ©
EFETARENR - AgfitEEL
Al e REABEREREE (A ) 212
B - ERERAERFH BT EES
E2LEEMNAPRKAAE A RERER
EITRERIR -

MENRRE ERREERBILEEZ
AR E BT RIEET - WMEED BIfh
AEEZAWESE - BIAKEGE %
REEMB 2R EEEN 2 AIKEE
B o

RARARSELBURTMER @ B0
BYARER—BZoREER - BXE
EenkEMHRERSELSEN - SAE
DEZREVAER —BOEEE L&
NREELBMAER o KRB RRRE
XEEMBRCEABUNRSELSE
fIAARIEE - WEARRIIR & A A B =k
ReELBEMARZRMEFLER

AU 3 4 2 A A R
BEME ZBEE - NaFkEREE
B - (AR T R IR BB
RO HIR(E - ARBE A R
BREER G ARES TR AERE
ZAR(GASELTD) 2N 2
-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

REMBBRRZEREERE
REHBER(E)

MERRE ERAEEERER
EEZRERBEE)

fW—IREE(HIReELEN) 2 A KO
TRMEFEREERETE @ MZEEEL
ReEEEM) 2 EFmEFREE K
PEE - BNEEREEXBOEEEE
TEAE— SO E —ERTELE
A AEELR—AREEL BN
FHE(BECXEEREE @ HED
ENEEZARTELTBEMUNTEEEE
fREE) BzAReEEBU 2RI E
TR > NEOREEIRR - ZBRERER
B 5t 70 B DA B AECAE fr) 7R 2B 1O R 1B (A1
EA) > MEERZEMAKZARES
ELFENRAEEZ REEZLIINE
EHMWEE - —HEEMNEKE@EENS
BRI E N SRR & A (0 AT &
) HERBE(WAEE)RETE
HEk&E - AEDEEZEENRERE
Bz et Pl DR =% B RZAR
TELBRUMEMEE - BEEERNR
RIBE AR -

R EREELER - RIZEE(SHR
TELEMN) 2 REEAENEHLLE
Rl AT PIIRE SRR - MR ANTR 2 Bk
BRI SBAMENBEFERARH
ZERE (SR SEE BN ) ERRER
Bz RAREE - BEEERDRER

B fER -

ERMITR
EEEERUATIASNGXN—HE]
MR RRRSESAMBIRE L
BREBEERERAE - IAAER
AABEILEZSREED RIS A
EAEEITRER M MR TR - UE R
BEINESERE SN EERIZIEM
5T 2 HRAISRABHIERE 2 IR A3 A
BEZTREE °

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT

ANNUAL REPORT £ ¥ 2020/2021

101



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
ANNUAL REPORT & # 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading and is not contingent consideration of an acquirer in
a business combination) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Emperor Capital Group Limited 2 2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

3.

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period (with the
amortised cost being the gross carrying amount less
the impairment allowance). If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets including other
debtors and deposits, amount due from an associate, loans
and advances, accounts receivable, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable that result from transactions within the scope
of HKFRS 15 and the ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with debtors having similar
credit ratings.

For all other instruments, the Group applies the general
approach to measure ECL for all financial assets, if any, which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. On this basis, the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iy  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o significant changes in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument
or similar financial instruments with the same
expected life;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change in the borrower’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant change in the
operating results of the borrower;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the borrower that results in a
significant change in the borrower’s ability to meet
its debt obligations;

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due (except for
accounts receivable from secured margin clients where
a shorter period of “past due” has been applied by the
directors in view of the nature of business operation
and practice in managing the credit risk), unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEMBBRZEHEERE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REFTBERE)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SWMIAE)

Financial assets (continued) THEEE)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) ZEEERE ()

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued) (i) EERRAEGME) ‘
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the AEETFHEZRUZENEER
criteria used to identify whether there has been a R EDABEMNFTEEZ BN
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as - BERIRE(IEE ) REER
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of SR oRAHRENEER
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the g AIEIE AN o

amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default (i BEHTE

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers RATEERBRERME @ WA

an event of default occurs when information developed B 4w B sk A SN ED SRR EER B B R

internally or obtained from external sources indicates KPEBAHEUARBERERE

that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including N BRATBEER  A|XEE

the Group, in full. REBEENEN -

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that Tm EiER - RIEAEEES

default has occurred when the instrument is more than BERARRASEENEESE

90 days past due (except for accounts receivable from A BAME T ABHRER

secured margin clients where a shorter period of “past 90H (FREKEERFRE IR

due” has been applied by the directors in view of the FERE@II - WHEER

nature of business operation and practice in managing REBKEENMTEREEREER

the credit risk), unless the Group has reasonable and BB EME)  AEBEEKHER

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. REEEER o

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) EERE:MEE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more MEE IR L HEMEHSY

events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated EREEMERKREREENK

future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. THHZE  AEReREES

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes WHAERLBEERE - /&

observable data about the following events: EHEEERENSEBREEH

TR EIRA =

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the (@) TITASERAEERE XA
borrower; TSR EE

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due (b) EREH - HlanEAsE
event; et

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or (c) ERANERAEFBER
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s ABREENELIER LR
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower MR EE - mMERARER
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not AT E B1TE ERFET
otherwise consider; o

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter (d) fERAGATRERE AR ESH
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or fhEF S EA ¢ 3K

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that (e) #ZertEERMBHEEMmE
financial asset because of financial difficulties. EERTIIZER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

3.

(iv)

Emperor Capital Group Limited &

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default are based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size, background and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where available.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
receivable from secured margin clients and loans
and advances where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

In assessing the ECL for financial assets, the Group
performs the assessment based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors specific to
the borrowers and the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions. The
Group also reviews the value of collateral received
from the customers in measuring impairment. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating the
impairment amount are reviewed regularly to reduce
any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but
is transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
creditors, short-term bank borrowings and bonds issued are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts;
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The application of ECL Model

The directors of the Company estimate the amount of loss
allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortised cost
based on the credit risk of the respective financial instrument.
The loss allowance amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows with the consideration of expected
future credit loss of the respective financial instrument. The
assessment of the credit risk and therefore expected cash
flows of the respective financial instrument involves a high
degree of estimation and uncertainty. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to changes in estimates. The estimates would include
the amount and timing of future cash flows, guarantees and
collateral value when determining impairment allowances.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected or
more than expected, a material impairment loss or a material
reversal of impairment loss may arise, accordingly. The
information about the ECL on financial assets at amortised
cost are disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited 2 2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
The application of ECL Model (continued)

The Risk Management Department is responsible for
developing and maintaining the processes for measuring ECL
including monitoring of credit risk, incorporation of forward
looking information and the method used to measure ECL;
and ensuring that the Group has policies and procedures in
place to appropriately maintain and validate models used to
assess and measure ECL.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group employs experts who use external and internal
information to generate scenarios of future forecasts of relevant
economic variables. The internal and external information used
includes the historical data of the Group and economic data
and forecasts published by governmental bodies, monetary
authorities or other financial institutions. Accordingly, when
measuring ECL, the Group selects and uses reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information without undue cost
or effort in its assessment, which is based on assumptions
and estimates for the future movement of different economic
drivers and how these drivers will affect each other as well as
the correlation. Management estimates these forward-looking
economic factors, such as GDP growth, unemployment rate,
interest rate and inflation etc under different scenario and
analyse the impact on probability of default (*PD”) and loss
given default (“LGD") for different financial assets.

Measurement of ECL

PD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. PD is an estimate
of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon and the
calculation is based on reasonable and appropriate statistical
rating models selected by the management. These statistical
models are based on market data (where available), as well
as internal data comprising both quantitative and qualitative
factors which includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of future conditions. The management gathers
this information and adjusts the data to reflect probability-
weighted forward looking information that is reasonable and
supportable and available without undue cost or effort.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking
into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements with estimation involved. The LGD models for
secured assets consider forecasts of future collateral valuation
taking into account sale discounts, transaction volume of the
secured assets and seniority of claim. For unsecured loans,
the calculation of LGD includes the judgments in determining
the proportion of loan recovered after default and the duration
of recovery.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
The application of ECL Model (continued)
Measurement of ECL (continued)

In assessing the lifetime ECL on credit-impaired financial assets
classified as stage 3, the Group performs the assessment
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors or
borrowers, which include any (i) significant financial difficulty
of the debtors or borrowers, (ii) the status and progress
of financial restructuring, general economic conditions and
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions with significant judgments
involved. Moreover, the Group also reviews and assesses
the fair value of the collateral received from the customers in
determining the impairment.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit
risk and expected credit losses are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Estimated impairment of property and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key inputs to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belongs including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established. Changing the inputs and estimates including the
discount rates or the growth rates in the cash flow projections
could materially affect the recoverable amounts of the various
cash-generating units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated impairment of property and equipment and right-
of-use assets (continued)

As at 30 September 2021, in view of impairment indicators,
the Group performed impairment assessment on property
and equipment and right-of-use assets of carrying amounts
(before impairment allowance) of HK$5,139,000 (2020:
HK$7,624,000) and HK$14,873,000 (2020: HK$22,759,000)
respectively. Impairment losses of HK$2,833,000 (2020:
HK$Nil) and HK$5,577,000 (2020: HK$Nil) have been
recognised on property and equipment and right-of-use assets
respectively for the year ended 30 September 2021. Details
of the impairment of property and equipment and right-of-use
assets are disclosed in notes 17 and 18.

Income taxes

As at 30 September 2021, tax losses of HK$Nil (2020:
HK$103,000,000) have been recognised as deferred tax
assets. The remaining tax losses of HK$2,751,030,000 (2020:
HK$1,309,000,000) have not been recognised as deferred
tax asset due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In case where
the actual future taxable profits generated are less or more
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material
reversal or further recognition of deferred tax asset may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see above), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)
Significant increase in credit risk in measurement of ECL

As explained in note 3, the Group monitors all financial assets
that are subject to impairment requirements to assess whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, except for certain loans and advances
and account receivables from margin clients which are
measured on lifetime ECL basis as for those credit risk had
increased significantly since initial recognition. If there has
been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company will
measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12m
ECL. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes
into account qualitative and quantitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Management will take into account information
like financial position of the borrowers, overdue period of
principal and interest, loan to collateral ratio that triggered
margin calls for additional collateral, change in fair value of
pledged securities or properties that constituted events of
breach of contracts and status of margin calls. Other details
are also set out in “Impairment of financial assets” in notes
3 and 40.

Determination of consolidation scope of certain pledged
securities in money lending

The Group entered into secured loan arrangements with
customers that contain several covenants such that the Group
may have the voting rights on certain relevant activities of the
pledged company if a covenant is breached. When these
protective rights become exercisable, there is a change
in facts and circumstances and the control assessment is
required to be performed.

All facts and circumstances must be taken into consideration
in the assessment of whether these rights are substantive
and whether the Group, as lender, has practical ability to
exercise these rights as power to direct the relevant activities
of the pledged company. The principle of control sets out the
following three elements of control: (a) power over the pledged
company; (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
involvement with the pledged company; and (c) the ability to
use power over the pledged company to affect the amount
of the lender’s returns.

In conducting the assessment to determine this consolidated
scope, the directors of the Company considers whether the
rights held by the Group are substantive and whether are
there any barriers (economic or otherwise) that prevent or
deter the Group from exercising its rights based on all facts
and circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of services provided.

According to HKFRS 8, the Group has the following operating
and reportable segments:

(a) Financing — Provision of margin financing and
money lending services

(b) Brokerage — Provision of securities, options,
services futures, insurance, other assets
and wealth management products
broking services and related
handling services

(c) Placing and — Provision of placing and
underwriting underwriting services

(d) Corporate — Provision of corporate finance
finance advisory services

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segments:

For the year ended 30 September 2021

Brokerage Placing and
Financing services underwriting

e SRR EREREH

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

TER TERT

REVENUE Ht A
Segment revenue - external
customers

DEBA- SRR

Commission and fee income 96,328
ReRERRA

Interest income F B A 548,448 3,021

Inter-segment sales 7 ZEHE 281,493 -
829,941 99,349

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
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i AR 7%
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AT AERER 2 WA R EEZLE RA]

BRI oM

B ZE2021F9H30R L FE

Corporate
finance  Elimination Total
rERE e @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THT THT TET

125,343

551,469

(281,493) -
(281,493) 676,812
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For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EER(E)

5.

Segment revenue and results (continued)
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

RESULTS ¥4

Segment results 2 2P¥4E

Unallocated other income and gains

or losses

ADEEMBRA LR E R

Unallocated corporate expenses
ANEEXER

- staff costs (including directors’
remuneration but excluding staff

commission expenses)
-BIRA(BREESFZME
EMBREEIMAEXH)

- service charge to related
companies (note 36(a)(ii))

-BTHBERARZREE
(H1:#36(a)ii)

- others
- HAtb

Share of profit of an associate

JEIE—FEIEE AR 2T

Loss before tax Bt A& 18

Income tax expense Pr{5HiH %

Loss for the year FE &1

DERBAREE(E)

Brokerage Placing and Corporate
Financing services underwriting finance

L& REOKRY EHEEEH TERE

SERMHEDERTTSEERE -

Total
#Et

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TERT TERT TER TER

TER

(541,639) 16,530 (517,690)

3,872

(1,500)

(10,396)

(15,992)

146

(541,560)

(34,534)

(576,094)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7HERE)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBBRAREE(E)
For the year ended 30 September 2020 HE2020F9H30R IEFE

Brokerage Placing and Corporate
Financing services underwriting finance Elimination Total
B KR REREHE 2 (rERE i gH it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET THT THT TAT

REVENUE A

Segment revenue - external
customers

DEPA-INBEP

Commission and fee income - 95,497 13,409 9,145 - 118,051
Ae kBRI
Interest income 779,246 20,110 - - - 799,356
FMEKA
Inter-segment sales 327,211 - - - (327,211) -
AHEEE

1,106,457 115,607 13,409 9,145 (327,211) 917,407

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EER(E)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBBRAREE(E)
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. HEBEHEE HIRRITHIGERKE -

Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services  underwriting finance Total
B Rl KEESH hERME et

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TR THET

RESULTS ¥4

Segment results D EBEE (713,736) 40,059 9,920 1,379 (662,378)
Unallocated other income and gains 2,171
or losses

ADEEMBRA R EE

Unallocated corporate expenses

AOEEEER

— staff costs (including directors’ (1,500)
remuneration but excluding staff
commission expenses)

—BIRA(BREZZHE  ETE

HEIMEexH)
- service charge to related (9,704)
companies (note 36(a)(ii))
— BT HEBERRZREE
(H1:#36(a)ii)
- others (8,253)
—Hfth
Share of profit of an associate 57
JE1h— Rl & R R) 2 i A
Loss before tax Bri%AI/E 8 (679,607)
Income tax expense PT35I % (10,140)
Loss for the year FEE51E (689,747)

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ 3 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) PEER(E)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBBRAREE(E)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment results represents the profit (loss) earned by
each segment without allocation of central administration
costs (including directors’ remuneration but excluding staff
commission expenses), unallocated other income and gains
or losses, service charge to related companies, and share
of profit of an associate. This is the measure reported to
the executive directors of the Company for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment. No
analysis of segment asset and segment liability is presented as
the chief operating decision maker does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue
and segment results are presented.

A2 #82 S BER B T3l 2
AEESTHRER - DRRBEERD
ARFTRRER 2 )i A (B51R) - MADELH R
TBRER(BREZ HE  HETH
X HRIN) RO REAMEA KK
SEE - R THERRZIREE MEN
— B2 QR ZE N o B RRAR B
TEFEEMARDEEERMFERRZ
Ei o BT BEERKR AN IFEREG
BREMANEEREFERR - HE
2D HEERDBEBE 2N -
it Z25 D EBRA R B o

Other segment information Hitt o #HE R
For the year ended 30 September 2021 B ZE2021F9A30B L FE

Brokerage
services underwriting

Financing

Placing and Corporate

finance Total

a5t
HK$°000
TR

TEME
HK$°000
TR

B BER®

RERas
HK$°000
TR

HK$°000
TERT

HK$°000
TERT

120

RNEMERRE

Depreciation of property and
equipment

MERRBITE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3,012

EREEECITE

Impairment allowances on accounts 658,985

receivable, net of reversal

FEWBR TR 2 R E R - HIkR#EE
Impairment allowances on loans and 280,727
advances, net of reversal

ERRBRBERRE - MERED

Impairment allowance on property
and equipment

MR K 2 RE RS

Impairment allowance on
right-of-use assets

EREERE 2 RERE

Finance costs B %2 H

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ % 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EER(E)
Other segment information (continued) Hihp WER ()
For the year ended 30 September 2020 #HZE2020F9H30H EFE
Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services  underwriting finance
ER Rk EREEBH LERE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET TET
Additions of property and equipment 16 1,050 - 8 1,074
NEWME N R
Depreciation of property and 1,161 1,592 - 3 2,756
equipment
MERRBZITE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3,368 8,552 - - 11,920
EREEECITE
Impairment allowances on accounts 994,290 3,297 - 220 997,807

receivable, net of reversal

FEMERT 2 RE R - BB

Impairment allowances on loans and 329,538 - - - 329,538
advances, net of reversal

ERRBRBERRE  MERED

Finance costs 8175 97,995 12,404 - - 110,399

Geographical information i &2 & R

The following illustrates the geographical analysis of (i) the NTHANAEERBEINTEF 2
Group’s revenue from its external customers, based on the WA(KBBINEREE 2K LWA
country from which the trades are derived in relation to mE - DERRSGREEL, KE
brokerage revenue from overseas products trading or/and Mg REESERPERMER
based on the country in which the customers are located in AME  NERBEFAEZER) &k
relation to financing, brokerage, placing and underwriting and (WVAEEERDEE(NEREE M
corporate finance revenue, and (ii) the Group’s non-current BAE) 2 HE DT -

assets, based on the geographical location of the assets:

Revenue Non-current assets
WA FRBEE
2021 2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TE&xT TAT

Hong Kong &% 673,222 20,312

United States = 3,590 - -

Others Efh - 2,720
676,812 917,407
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred Wit FERDEETBEIESBM T EKELER
tax assets. HEE o

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ 3 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7HERE)
Information about major customer EBRETEEFNER
For the years ended 30 September 2021 and 30 September HZE2021F9H30H &2020F9HA30H
2020, there was no single customer who contributed 10% or IFE - TEE-FFERNKAMGAR
more of the Group’s revenue. EEWAR10%IA L »

6. REVENUE 6. WA

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT AT

Revenue ¥ A

Commission and fee income (Note (i): 184 & &R A (F173))

Commission and fees income on dealing in securities (Note (ii)) 74,061
BEEES 2 ME RERWA (L)
Commission and fees income on dealing in futures and options 18,662
contracts (Note (ii))
EEHE R 2 Me LERBWAHZI))
Commission from insurance brokerage and wealth management 2,774
(Note (ii))
R R EER 2B (M)
Corporate finance advisory services fee income (Note (iii)) 12,735 9,145
(R EERYE BER ARAG B WA (B a2 (i)
Placing and underwriting commission (Note (iv)) 16,280 13,409
fe s BB A& (A e (iv))
125,343 118,051
Interest income: FJEHA :
Interest income from margin and initial public offer (“IPO”) financing 224,233 390,434
(Note (v))
HFREBRXAAEE(ERAFREEBENN WA (K L))
Interest income from loans and advances (Note (v)) 324,215 388,812
B RBRZ FEWA AT (V)
Interest income from bank deposits (Note (i) 3,005 19,473
IRITIF R Z FLBMA B a2 (i)
Others (Note (ii)) E L (Ha£(ii)) 16 637
551,469 799,356
676,812 917,407

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE
REVENUE (continued)

Notes:

6.

(i)

(if)

(iii)

The commission and fee income is the only revenue arising
under the scope of HKFRS 15, while interest income is under
the scope of HKFRS 9.

Included in revenue, revenue arising from contracts with
customers recognised at a point in time and over time were
HK$112,205,000 (2020: HK$108,906,000) and HK$13,138,000
(2020: HK$9,412,000), respectively.

All services provided to customers are for periods of one year
or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Amounts are reported under brokerage services segment as
set out in Note 5.

Amounts are reported under corporate finance segment set
out in Note 5.

Amounts are reported under placing and underwriting segment
set out in Note 5.

Amounts are reported under financing segment set out in Note
5.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS OR LOSSES

Other income (Note i) EAbUg A (Bt7Ei)

Exchange gains or losses, net [E 54 W z5sk B8 @ JF5

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & M{E A aEE

6.

7.

u& A (/l/ =
Mtet -

() MERERARATIREBEEEUMBRS
ERIFAGRIE TELMNME—IA - M
FEBWMARBR BRI BRMEERSE

M EE -

W A B 4R A O B R B R — ER B
MEBRZEPAHRBRASD B
A 112,205,000 & (2020 4 :
108,906,000/ 7T ) & 13,138,000/ 7T
(20204 : 9,412,000/ 7T) °

R{EEPZMERBHRA —FX
R - REFBVHREEAFE 155
ERZERTRANZ

BTRE 2
RPBRERKE °

(i) KRERBD
5 e

(i) TEBEDIETZE2RSEIHM

u£5 ©

(iv) EELEBIES

WES °©
(v) EFRHEETZE
Ha AR s E 18

2021
HK$°000
TR
6,844

3,804

Note:

During the current year, the Group recognised Covid-19 related
government grants of HK$3,428,000 (2020: HK$3,423,000)
as other income in connection with the Employment Support
Scheme provided by the Hong Kong Government.

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXHSFEBEHBR AT

(i) MAEE KAEBEB2019EBRKS
AR BB BT 489 B 3,428,00078 7T ( 2020
F 1 3,423,000/ 70 ) R A H BB K
FFRREMMRBLE IFF 2B M E IR

Ao
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
8. IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES ON FINANCIAL 8. £®EEZRERE & HIKRE
ASSETS, NET OF REVERSAL =]

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000

FERT TAT

Net impairment allowances on: 518 B 2 G {E##HF5E ¢
Accounts receivable FEUERTX 658,575 997,807

Loans and advances B & #5k 280,727 329,538
939,302 1,327,345

9. STAFF COSTS 9. BIMNAK

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TR

Staff costs represent the amounts paid and payable to the directors
and employees and comprise:
BIRAEENKENTESEREEZEHE - 81 -

Salaries, bonus and allowances ¥4 - {41 J2 284

Contributions to retirement benefits scheme B {1 F 5T 214 5%

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BEH
2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Interest on: N3IIEEB ZF 8 -

Bank overdrafts and loans $8/7# % M ER
Bonds issued 2 #1T{E%
Lease liabilities F & & &

Others EAh

110,399

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
124 ANNUAL REPORT £ $§ 2020/2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EERRSTHRAEZEHE
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 6 (2020: 6) AT B F6AL(20204F : 6f1)ES
directors and the chief executive were as follows: RESITHRABZMES0T -
For the year ended 30 September 2021 B ZE2021F9A30H L FE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors

unEs BUFuTES

Choi Suk Hing,
Daisy Yeung Louisa Pearl Chan  Chu Kar Wing  Poon Yan Wai ~ Wan Choi Ha Total
L 3L G RER ELE BYE Eh

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn Tén TR TEn TiEn TEn
(Notes (b), (d) (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c))
(W) (@) (W) (W) (Hit(e) (Wi(c)) (Wi(c)

Fees 1% 250 250 250 250 250 250

Other remuneration Efti#l4
Salaries and allowances %4 28

Discretionary bonus (Note (a))

BT (Wit(a)

Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme
RIVERIE B

Total remuneration (Note (b) & (d))
MeL® (Witb)k()

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ 3 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EERESTHRAEZHE
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (4 )
For the year ended 30 September 2020 HZE2020F9A30H ILFE

Executive directors
#1722
Choi Suk Hing,

Louisa

Poon Yan Wai

non-executive directors

FTES

ey
2

Hk$’000
T
(Note (c))

)’J

Fees 14 250 250 250 250 250 250 1,500
Other remuneration Efh 84
Salaries and allowances %4 J28 1492 2,063 1767 - - - 5,322
Discretionary bonus (Note (a)) - - - - - - -
HETL M)
Contributions to retirement benefits 17 144 88 - - - 249
scheme
RIVEFIEEIER
Total remuneration B 8% 1759 2457 2,105 250 20 250 7,071
Notes: it -
(a) Discretionary bonus is determined as regard to the Group’s (a) MBREANRTFAEELEZEE - (H

operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

(b)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for (b)
their services rendered in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.

(c)  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown (c)
above were for their services rendered as directors of the
Company. There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

(d)  Ms Daisy Yeung is also the Chief Executive of the Company (d)
and her emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by her as Chief Executive. No apportionment has
been made as it is impracticable to apportion this amount
among her services to the Company and its subsidiaries.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ % 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

12. EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 12. EEMS
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group REE2021F9A30RIEFE * A&
included two (2020: two) directors of the Company for the year ErzhAZmaiMALTRREARRIMRE
ended 30 September 2021, details of whose emoluments are (2020F : MB)EE ' FEZMEF
included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The emoluments B EXKFI1HE  RAFEE H
of the remaining three (2020: three) individual for the year B=H(2020F : =H) AL Z2BIE&mm
were as follows: N

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FBT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % =8k R EWEF 2,348

Bonus FE4L 7,593

Contributions to retirement benefits scheme B {REF 5T 214 7% 156
10,097

The remunerations were within the following bands: e FT5IEE

Number of employees
EEAH
2021 2020

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
2,500,001/ 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
3,000,001/ 7T % 3,500,000/ 7T

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
3,500,001 7T % 4,000,000/ 7T

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
4,000,001 7% 4,500,000/ 7T

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group RAEE @ AEBWES A TER
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals EEdnERaFMAL - EREEMN
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AREE S MMAKRE B R RE)KER
compensation for loss of office. REBER 2 e -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
13. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging:
BREATES R kR -

Other expenses: Ehs i
Auditor’'s remuneration % ZiE B &
Legal and professional fee A2 K HEE

Advertising and promotion expenses E& M EE % T

Information technology services and communication expenses

B AT AR 75 Ko AR S

Depreciation of property and equipment #72 N &x & 2 T &

Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FFREEE 2 T E

General and administrative expenses (Note) —f& & 1TE S H (#15#)

Rates and building management fee Z#iRIEFEIRE
Settlement expenses & &

Miscellaneous expenses A

13. BRBLATE 18

2020
HK$'000
TR

2,062
6,912
656

14,773

2,756
11,920
12,166

2,301

2,994

6,646

63,186

Note:

Included in general and administrative expenses for the year ended 30
September 2021 is a provision of HK$6 million as a result of regulatory
matters. Management is of the view that adequate provision has been
made as at the end of reporting period for the consequence of the
regulatory matters and there are no other impact to the consolidated
financial statements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14, FREHEAX

Current year: AFE :
Hong Kong Profits Tax &#&H5H:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B F15H

Canada Income Tax INEAMEFR

(Over) underprovision in prior year: @ F[E (BREEE ) BE T ¢

Hong Kong &8
Deferred tax: IEIEFIE :

Current year (Note 28) N & (f1:£28)

2021
HK$°000

FERT

38

)

(1,705)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

REBEEBEFNERF S RES
EEREEER 2 H2000000% T
i A5 12 8.25% 2 B R BT - miBid
2,000,000 7T 2 i ) 8|12 16.5% 2 %t
R - THEFEHEMAFNEER
B RMGHEEIR165% 2 55— =K
BH Bl AEREBERZES
F18 % 58 B 2,000,000 7T 2 L5t FERR
TR FIE8.25% 2 T R+ & - Wl
i#%2,000,000/8 7T 2 {h 5T FE &7 i v Fll 1%
16.5% 2 T RTHE -

RIFREARKMBE(THE]) DX
BERA(TREMBEE]) REEAEH
EEIGD > PEMNBRRZRNER
25% -

b FVERIE 2 BB A B R AR Y
FATHEE -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before tax B # Al 518

14. FiEHAX(E)

REFHRIARG S Ea M E M2 E
RATEFRT AR SR T -

Income tax at applicable rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)
1216.5% (20204 : 16.5%) 2 EAB X E 2 it

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose

BN S AR HR S h 2 RIS &

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose

AR S HARRRAZ R E

(Over) underprovision in respect of prior years

BEFE (BREERE) BETE

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
BRBEAREHER TS

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & MR H HE 18 2 FiiE

Tax effect of recognition of deferred tax previously not recognised

BRBTARBERELERIE 2 R E
Reversal of deferred tax assets IEIERI B & 7 [0l
Income tax at concessionary rate &&= EERNATIEHR

Others Efth

Income tax expense for the year FEFT15FiF

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET
(541,560) (679,607)
(89,357) (112,135)

2,553 2,513
(8,881) (6,584)

(1,705) 1,350
(2,410) (912)

7 110,939 142,867
(16,925)
(165)

131

10,140

As at 30 September 2021, the Group had unused estimated
tax losses of approximately HK$2,751,030,000 (2020:
HK$1,411,911,000) available for offset against future profits
of the respective companies in which the losses arose. The
unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely with
no expiry date but subject to the approval of the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department. As at 30 September 2021, no
tax loss have been recognised as deferred tax assets (2020:
HK$103,000,000). The remaining tax losses of approximately
HK$2,751,030,000 (2020: HK$1,309,000,000) have not been
recognised as deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams, of which approximately HK$681,561,000
arose from the impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries
and was eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ % 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to RARERE AEBEERENBEIIRE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: THIERETE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000

FERT TAT

Loss &g

Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share (576,094) (689,747)
AR EEBREAREEZ BB

Number of shares BR3P & B

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic 6,740,846 6,740,846

loss per share
ARt EFREREE 2 BB INEF1I2
Basic loss per share EREAXEE ERNEEN  HK(10.23) cents
4l AL

No diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 September AR ARREEHZ2021F9A30H &
2021 and 30 September 2020 were presented as there were 20209 A30H IEFEHE(E (B #
no potential ordinary shares outstanding during the years. EERR  ALTEZINZEFEZT

g S -

16. DIVIDENDS 16. RE
The Directors did not recommend any payment of final EETEEREE2021F9A308 &
dividend for the years ended 30 September 2021 and 202049 A 30 A 1E F F Ik fa] R B
30 September 2020. B oo

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 17. MERRE
Furniture Computer
Leasehold and Office and other Motor
improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicle Total
MERE BRREE BAERKE SRREMGRE RE Hct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TR TR FER
COST AR
At 1 October 2019 15,823 2,180 6,609 22,954 673 48,239
72019104 1H
Additions & 510 60 53 451 - 1,074
At 30 September 2020 16,333 2,240 6,662 23,405 673 49,313
120209 A30H
Additions & 84 55 68 67 - 274
At 30 September 2021 16,417 2,295 6,730 23,472 673 49,587
72021694308
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
ZEMERAE
At 1 October 2019 13,559 2,044 6,609 16,058 663 38,933
720195104 1H
Depreciation for the year 787 63 53 1,843 10 2,756
RERHE
At 30 September 2020 14,346 2,107 6,662 17,901 673 41,689
72202059 A30H
Depreciation for the year 800 67 68 1,824 - 2,759
RERHE
Impairment for the year 669 51 - 2,113 - 2,833
KRERRE
At 30 September 2021 15,815 2,225 6,730 21,838 673 47,281
720219 A30H

CARRYING AMOUNTS

REE
At 30 September 2021 602 70 - 1,634 - 2,306
7202149 A30H
At 30 September 2020 1,987 133 - 5,504 - 7,624
7202059 A30H
All the above items of property and equipment are depreciated FEEﬁﬁZW%&E&L{%Iﬁ BB
on a straight-line basis at the rate of 20% per annum, except #20% 2 FETUMTE - HYREER
that leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter MHEASF (ABREE RE) TUFE -

of the lease terms or 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. MERFZEE)

Impairment assessment

During the current year, as a result of the recurring losses of the
Group and significant uncertainty on global and local economic
environment, the management of the Group concluded there
was indicator for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on property and equipment, and right-of-use
assets of carrying amounts (before impairment allowance) of
HK$5,139,000 and HK$14,873,000, respectively. The Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units of financing and brokerage services to which the assets
belong when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, including allocation of corporate assets
when reasonable and consistent basis can be established.

Financing

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
the following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rate of 15% as
at 30 September 2021.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management
of the Group determined that the recoverable amount of
cash-generating unit is lower than the carrying amount. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category of
property and equipment and right-of-use assets such that
the carrying amount of each category of asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its
value in use and zero. Based on the value in use calculation
and the allocation, impairment losses of HK$2,833,000 and
HK$5,577,000 (2020: HK$Nil and HK$NIil) has been recognised
against the carrying amount of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets, respectively.

Brokerage services

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
the following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rate of 15% as
at 30 September 2021.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amount of cash-
generating unit is above the carrying amount. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not result in impairment.

BB RS

RAFE  ARAEEHEBEEHE
B NERREAHEERBEFEEX
THAREZ  AEEEEERAETE
(BRBERERT) 9 5 A5,139,0007%8 7T
%.14,873,00078 TTHY ¥ 3 R a8 5 A B {5
RAELECHERETR - WHZWE
KMEEARGEBEEEETRERY -
WA KA RED B AT R e & 588 - K
EEGHHZEENE 2B E ML RS
HeEESM ko2 B(EAIRT
AER—HNEER - AIBESERAR
BEZOKREDEEE) -

B
MEEEBN 2 AJRESFEIIRESH
BEFEMETE - % TEFERERNASE
BIEIRE R 20219 A30H FTilb R &
KRAFZHMBBEZRSRETEN -
FBIERIRE B15% o

BEFLER  AEBEEEETRS
BB A E4ERNRERE -
BESHEEIEESBYENREUAN
FRABEE  NWEFESBEEENEREET
SREEVREAFEBEERA - H
FHREERSEFNRSE © REF
BREAAELNE  MERKREAR
FRAEEEERED AERRERE
2,833,000 7T 55,577,000 7t ( 2020
FEBETRTET) -

R

WEeELBM I WES5EHREFEH
BEFEMEE - ZTEFERERAE
B EIEEN2021F9 8308 Frith R e
RRAFZHEBEZ RS RETEA -
FATELIR R 515% o

RETEEE  AEETREET RS
Bt B AT B A AR EE o B
BB MRS BR 2 FTA R
BB RS BOAME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FRHEEE

As at 30 September 2021 72021F9A30H

Leased
properties

HEWE
HK$’000
FERT

Carrying amount EREI{E 9,296
As at 30 September 2020 202049 530H

Carrying amount BREE 22,759
For the year ended 30 September 2021 & £E2021F9HA30H It FE

Depreciation for the year KFEHE (10,795)

Impairment for the year AN [E B (5,577)

Additions RNE 2,909
Total cash outflow for leases FAE Z IR & in H 4858 (11,347)
For the year ended 30 September 2020 #{Z£2020F9H30H It FE

Depreciation for the year RFEZH & (11,920)

Additions ANE 21,661
Total cash outflow for leases FHE Z IR &R H#B%E (11,871)

No expenses relating to short-term leases incurred for the
years ended 30 September 2021 and 2020.

For both years, the Group leases various offices, an advertising
billboard and server center for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 20 months to 61 months
(2020: 20 months to 61 months). Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

Lease liabilities of HK$15,578,000 (2020: HK$23,418,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$9,296,000
(2020: HK$22,759,000) as at 30 September 2021. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Details of maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 29 and 40.

Impairment assessment

Details of the impairment assessment of right-of-use assets
are disclosed in note 17.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
HK$’000
THERT
COST pA&
At 1 October 2019, 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2021
201910818 ~ 2020F9 A30H & 202149 A30H 9,802

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT ##%5 X &
At 1 October 2019, 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2021
201910818 ~ 20209 A30H & 202149 A30H 9,802

CARRYING VALUES 8RHEIE
At 30 September 2021 7202149 A30H -

At 30 September 2020 202099 A30H -

Trading rights were fully amortised over 10 years from the Q%%QQOQQF%%Q% ) %Ef;%%qézﬁﬁ
effective day of the merger of the Stock Exchange, the Hong &§7§¢%§Dﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁazéﬁfﬁiﬂﬁ
Kong Futures Exchange and the Hong Kong Securities HARBHZA O T AZE 2R 8K

Clearing Company Limited to year 2000.

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 20. R—EHE QR z2ER

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000

FRET THETT

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate R 3E_E & A F 2 R EKA
Share of post-acquisition loss and other comprehensive expense (1)

FEIEU B R BB R E b 2 E R

Amount due from an associate (Note (i) FEUL— R8N BB (H15#(i))
Less: Loss allocated in excess of cost of investment

B B R EIREBRE KA

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEHRRHE
For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

As at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2021, the Group
had interest in the following associate:

20.

R—EBE N7 2= (E)

720209 A30H % 202149 A30H -
AR B T 5B & A ) A e

Proportion of

Form of
business
structure

Place of Class of
incorporation share held

Name of entity

nominal value
of issued capital
held by the Group

Principal
activity

AEEFRZ

ERER ERERES SRV AEROER
2021
(Note (i)

(B (i)

ERITRAEELA

2020
(Note (i)
(Kiat(i))

Boom High Investments Incorporated BVI Ordinary 28% 28% Investment
Limited (“Boom High”) Al ava KERZHE  shares holding
BERBERAR([BX]) gl REEK

The Group’s share of profit 7N B fE {5 ¥ 7|

2021
HK$°000

2020
HK$'000
THETT

TR

146

The Group’s share of total comprehensive income

AEEE(E 2 45

146

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the associate

REBENEE AP < REAE

Notes:

(i) The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

(i) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Boom
High because it has more than 20% voting rights in its financial
and operating policy decisions and the Group is entitled to
appoint a director in Boom High.

21. OTHER ASSETS

Statutory and other deposits A& Kk H itz e

(i) EhR—REBLEARZELAEER . &
BRIBRBREE -

(i) BRAKREREE G REERK
THEAEB20% 2 REE - MAKE
ERZISKZIES  BAKETYH
RIKITEEATED -

21. HtEE

2021
HK$°000

2020
HK$'000

FERT THETT

10,126

Statutory and other deposits primarily represent deposits with
various exchanges and clearing houses. They are non-interest
bearing.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ % 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE
22. LOANS AND ADVANCES 22. ERRBRR

2021
HK$°000

FRET

EFEER 3,256,884 3,705,116
Variable-rate loans receivable JEUW % B &3 280,577 199,606

o 3,537,461 3,904,722
Less: Provision for impairment J& : J& (B # & (1,026,449) (745,722)

2,511,012 3,159,000

Analysed as: D7
Current &5 1,845,640 2,532,317
Non-current JEREN 285 665,372 626,683

2,511,012 3,159,000

The carrying amounts of the Group’s fixed-rate and variable- REEZ RWETFERNEREEER R
rate loans receivable together with their remaining contractual HEZRFHRENDNEHB 2T ¢

maturity dates are as follows:

2021
HK$°000
TR

Fixed-rate loans receivable: FEWETEFEERK :
Within one year —F K 1,380,314 2,262,943
In more than one year but no more than five years —F#&{EBRFENRN 122,689 139,270
Over five years A& 12 270,429 299,807

1,773,432 2,702,020
Past due 2153 457,003 257,374

2,230,435 2,959,394

Variable-rate loans receivable: FEIE BB

Within one year —F K 14,617
In more than one year but no more than five years —F B HFR 48,455
Over five years A& 1% 209,404
272,476

Past due E#Hj 8,101

280,577 199,606

Details of movements in provision for impairment of loans and ERRBFBEREEE 2 FIBENMT
advances are set out in note 40. 5140
The effective interest rates of the Group’s loans receivable AEBRWER ZEBRRZRMT

are as follows:

2021

Effective interest rates: BFEFIE :

Fixed-rate loans receivable 0.5% per month to 3.83% 0.67% per month to 3.83%
JE W [ 7E ) 2= | 3K per month per month

5 H0.5% %5 H3.83% HH0.67%%% H3.83%
Variable-rate loans receivable Prime rate — 2.75% per Prime rate — 2.75% per annum

FEYE B ER annum to prime rate per to prime rate per annum
annum BERBENNE - 275%EFF
BEREEANE - 2.75%EE RIEEN X
FREZM=R

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ 3 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

22. LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued) 22. ERREBHK(E)
As at 30 September 2021, 165 (2020: 185) secured 7R 202149 A30H 1653E(2020
loans with the aggregate gross amount of approximately % : 18518 ) B RE 49 1,322,268,000 %
HK$1,322,268,000 (2020: HK$1,528,321,000) were secured 7£(2020 4 : 1,528,321,0008 7T ) 2
by first legal charges in respect of respective properties EERHRERDUBERMERE Y
located in Hong Kong and Canada. The collateral for each ZEEERCIEERTR - FEAER
individual loan is sufficient to cover the loan amount on an MEFRMENERSBEEREE - Z
individual basis. They were advanced to various independent EERDENTEZRZEILERA - I
borrowers and will be due for repayment within 1 to 30 years B 1R 304 (20204 : 1£230%F )
(2020: 1 to 30 years). As at 30 September 2021, there are FEAEE - W2021F9A30H ' B
28 secured loans (2020: 27) with the aggregate gross amount A H#773,871,0007% 7£(2020 F -
of approximately HK$773,871,000 (2020: HK$884,697,000), 884,697,000/ 7T ) 2 2818 F I E K
the borrowers of which hold Hong Kong listed marketable (20204 : 2718) - ERARREE—
securities under the securities account in one of the Group MERBCELRPAREREELTAS
entities. The Group has the rights on all these securities to B o MR EERARIBAREER
repay the outstanding loans in the event that the borrowers FIERIE - AN EERERAMEZSE
fail to pay the amount due on due date. The remaining gross BHUEBEREECZER - BRERE
balance of the loans receivable amounting to approximately BRFE 491,441,322,000% 7T (2020 4F -
HK$1,441,322,000 (2020: HK$1,491,704,000) were provided 1,491,704,00087T) h AL TAEE 2
to independent third parties of the Group, of which the BYE=F - EH#1688,413,000# T
loan amount of approximately HK$688,413,000 (2020: (20204 : 672,389,000/ C) 2 &Y
HK$672,389,000) were with second or third legal charges in INEBWEZE —SF=AFERLAE
respect of properties located in Hong Kong and will be due R WHRBEEBRER BN AR
for repayment within 1 to 30 years (2020: 1 to 30 years) from FT1ZE304 (20204 : 12304 ) A EIH]
the respective loans’ date of advance. EE -
As at 30 September 2021 and 30 September 2020, each M2021F9A30H KX 20209 A30H -
of the fixed-rate and variable-rate secured loans receivable FIEEWEFE N ERZEBEEARERL
represented less than 15% of the gross loans and advances ERRBREERERELN15% o
balance.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and advances AEEEREBF 2 RAEREAYF
approximate their fair value. BiEE -
Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “credit EERBER FIERESHNMT402
risk and impairment assessment” in note 40. [EERBS K BT

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 23. EWERRX

KEEFBEBERB 2 BBRA -
Clearing houses, dealers, brokers and cash clients
RER - R5H RREBELER
Secured margin loans BiKEFFREE K
IPO margin loans B X AFAEEFRER

Accounts receivable from the business of dealing in futures contracts:

KEHEANEBERR 2 RURK -

Clearing houses, brokers and margin clients &&F7 « &4 R AAREF

Accounts receivable from the business of corporate finance

KEBERE R 2 EUERR

Accounts receivable from the business of placing and underwriting

KB Be s BB 3K 5 2 IR MR BR K

Accounts receivable from the business of dealing in securities:

2021 2020
L e

HK$'000
THETT

TR

102,325 80,632
3,594,507 3,499,512
8,900 2,403,233
70,276 77,215
1,558 810

4,755

Less: provision for impairment J& : Js{E B

3,777,566
(2,386,097)

6,066,157
(1,727,522)

1,391,469 4,338,635

The settlement terms of accounts receivable, except for
secured margin loans and IPO margin loans, arising from
the business of dealing in securities are two days after trade
date, and of accounts receivable arising from the business
of dealing in futures contracts are one day after trade date.

Normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from the
business of corporate finance and placing and underwriting
are determined in accordance with the contractual terms.
The Group seeks to maintain tight control over its outstanding
accounts receivable from the business of corporate finance
in order to minimise the credit risk.

Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “credit
risk and impairment assessment” in note 40.

As at 30 September 2021, accounts receivable from foreign
brokers denominated in Australian dollar, Renminbi, Singapore
dollar, British Pound, Euro and United States dollar were
approximately HK$221,000 (2020: HK$216,000), HK$170,000
(2020: HK$1,067,000), HK$31,000 (2020: HK$549,000),
HK$47,000 (2020: HK$45,000), HK$92,000 (2020: HK$92,000)
and HK$30,571,000 (2020: HK$41,053,000) respectively.

As at 30 September 2021 and 30 September 2020, no
individual account represented more than 15% of the total
balance of accounts receivable.

EFBEBRRGELS 2 BRER(GE
HIREFRERRHAEEFRERR
INZEEHIR AR HEEMA -
SRMBEEXBES 2 BBIRR 2%
BHRARZHE—H °

KEDEREMCELEBHERL B
RAE LR SEERRIES AR E
E o mREEERR  AEENRY
HiEAREERADERE RS < RUSR

RIRFT R AR o

EERBRERZFIEREHNKIFI02
[MEE R SR ERT S ] -

R2021F9A30H  EUIBIMNSLLEER
LUBTE ~ ARE « 53T « Heg
B R ETTRHE - 2 RI4) A221,000%8
Jt( 20204 : 216,000/ 7T ) * 170,000
7 (2020 F : 1,067,000 7 T ) »
31,0007 7t.( 20204F : 549,000/ 7C) *
47,0007 7T (20204 : 45,0008 7T )
92,0007 7T ( 20204 : 92,000/ 7T ) &
30,571,000/ 75 ( 20204 : 41,053,000
BIT) °

202159 A30H K£2020%9 A30H -
I 4 {E R BR TG RN R RS sr R SR R 4R
15% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

23.

24,

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 23. BEWERR (&)

No ageing analysis of secured margin loans and IPO margin RABRITESRE - ERMTBERME
loans is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive directors B BRRAMZWIMEEBETK
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional BEBREERATREFRERAAHARE
value in view of the nature of this business. HFRERZRRDHNT -

The ageing analysis of the remaining of the accounts receivable FEUBR REATE R E BT ) 2 BR B D AT 1A
(before impairment) are as follows: ™

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000

FER TAT

Past due: #1H :

0 — 30 days 0£30H 1,405
31 - 60 days 31£60H 452
61 — 90 days 61£90H 45
Over 90 days #iB90H 518
Accounts receivable which were past due B #18 ~ B IR 2,420
Accounts receivable which were not past due 78 7 FEUER 171,739
174,159

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS - GENERAL 24, BIEFRITER— —RRP

ACCOUNTS

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THETT

Pledged bank deposits B R1T1F 5K 160,000

The deposits of HK$160,000,000 (2020: HK$160,000,000) iR 1773 7160,000,0007% JT (2020 F :
with a bank were to secure the banking facilities granted 160,000,000/ 70 ) B 1 B A S B %
to the Group to the extent of HK$160,000,000 (2020: TR E % %160,000,00075 7T (20204 :
HK$160,000,000), of which HK$Nil (2020: HK$Nil) was utilised 160,000,000/ 7T ) 2 HF - X Z%
as at 30 September 2021. g%g;%ﬁ C T IT) B R2021F9 A 30

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. RITHEBRKRRAS

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THETT

Bank balances $R1T4 64 -
- segregated accounts (Note) — YB3 8EF (f1:F) 1,834,598 1,574,525
- general accounts and cash ——REF KRS 864,062 692,032

2,698,660 2,266,557

Note: The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients and Wit EETXREXHRES  AKHE
other institutions in the course of the conduct of the regulated WEEFRER REMEBET R
activities. These clients’ money are maintained in one or more B REEFPRAFEN —HLZE
segregated bank accounts and bear interest at commercial B RITERP RN RIEEEN XS -
rates. The Group has recognised the corresponding accounts ARECHREMNTHERBES REM
payable to respective clients and other institutions. However, B2 HBARR - AT - AEEREF
the Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset A A PRF IR 2 IR 4R 35 % B R T AR
those payables with the deposits placed. R PR EIATHE

As at 30 September 2021, bank balances and cash R202159A30R » LUEIT ~ f1&E A

denominated in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, Japanese T~ BE XL ARE - BE B

Yen, United States dollar, Renminbi, British Pound, Euro LTI TTEHEZ RITHEBR RS D

and Singapore dollar, are approximately HK$84,000 (2020: R4 /84,0007 7T ( 20204 : 83,000/8

HK$83,000), HK$204,000 (2020: HK$221,000), HK$10,000 7T ) ~ 204,0005% 7T (20204 : 221,000

(2020: HK$22,000), HK$312,911,000 (2020: HK$324,541,000), 75 7C) + 10,0007 7t (20204 : 22,000

HK$54,719,000 (2020: HK$31,640,000), HK$10,000 (2020: # 75 )~ 312,911,000 3 70(2020 :

HK$10,000), HK$NIl (2020: HK$92,000) and HK$15,535,000 324,541,000/ 7T ) * 54,719,00078 7T

(2020: HK$13,070,000) respectively. (20204 : 31,640,000/ 7T ) * 10,000

7 7 ( 20204 10,0008 7T) ~ B TT
(20204 : 92,000/ 7T ) & 15,535,000
7B 70(20204F : 13,070,000/ 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 26. FE{TERRX

BHEEEBZ BN
Clearing houses and brokers #& FT R 4&42
Margin and cash clients fff& &iﬁigﬁ

Accounts payable from the business of dealing in futures contracts:

HEANEBXB EBNERER
Margin clients ffE & F

Accounts payable from the business of dealing in securities:

2021 2020
HK$’000

HK$'000
FET THETT

18,915 4,538
1,812,086 1,515,590

162,461

1,993,462 1,719,559

The settlement terms of accounts payable, except for margin
clients, arising from the business of dealing in securities are
two days after trade date and accounts payable arising from
the business of dealing in futures contracts are one day after
trade date. No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion
of the executive directors of the Company, the ageing analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of this
business.

Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising from the
business of dealing in securities and dealing in futures bear
interest at commercial rates, and are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date.

Included in accounts payable, amounts of approximately
HK$1,834,598,000 and HK$1,574,525,000 as at 30 September
2021 and 30 September 2020 respectively were payable to
clients and other institutions in respect of the segregated bank
balances received and held for clients and other institutions in
the course of conducting the regulated activities. However, the
Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset
these accounts payable with the deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2021, accounts payable denominated
in Australian dollar, Japanese Yen, United States dollar,
Singapore dollar, Euro and Renminbi were approximately
HK$79,000 (2020: HK$77,000), HK$10,000 (2020: HK$23,000),
HK$247,874,000 (2020: HK$262,106,000), HK$9,631,000
(2020: HK$9,327,000), HKS$Nil (2020: HK$92,000) and
HK$35,370,000 (2020: HK$15,745,000) respectively.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXA5EEER QT
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’Ea%ﬁ"*ﬁﬁ?iZﬁEﬁﬁE NEENE
%z)f'fﬁ%%)z EHRARZHRM
& *ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘éééﬁ/v\ifxﬁﬁFEZF’é
NERcEEHR /X HHEK—B -
ARBATESRR - ERRAEHME
g RSN M NEERESK - A
B EEIRRER DT

AR EBENMIEEREBMEL ZEN
ﬁ@&ﬁ@%)ﬁzﬁﬁ WL ISE TS
B WARGEERRIZEREER -

REETIREERBERATPRLE
B i E 2 B IRTTE ST
= - M202149A30H k202059 A30
Ezmﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁfﬁmgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%
S Z ZIE S BI# A1,834,598,0007E
75&1,574,525,000/%75 R - AE
BIRES W E AR RS IREZEE
FBRFRZ AT R HIRTTHE ©

M2021F9A30H » LR - HEA -
EJL - Fwor c BE N AR
B2 EMNERD R4 A79,000% T
(20204 : 77,000/ 7T ) * 10,0007 7T
(20204 : 23,000/87T) * 247,874,000
78 70 (20204F : 262,106,000 7T ) -
9,631,0007% 7 ( 20204 : 9,327,000
7T) ~ B 7T (20204F : 92,0008 7T ) K&
35,370,0005% 7T ( 20204F : 15,745,000
BIT) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

The Group held 15% equity interest in Emperor Investment
Fund Limited (“EIFL"), which had no business operations and
had net liabilities as at 30 September 2020.

27.

In the opinion of the executive directors of the Company, the
equity interests held by the Group in EIFL were with a primary
objective for capital appreciation and recognised as financial
asset at FVTOCI.

The executive directors of the Company considered the fair
value of the EIFL as at 30 September 2020 was approximately
equal to zero with reference to the net liabilities of EIFL.

EIFL was dissolved as at 30 September 2021.

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 28.

Deferred tax assets ¥EIEFIIEE &

ERHMEERFEQFET
ResmEE

AEEFHAEEREESARAA([H
EREES )15%MKIE - B2REES
202049 A 30 B 7 ¥ 75 24E M 8% 15
BEFHE -

ARRMITESRA » AREREER
BEESHRAZBEIZEANR/TRE
AIHE - WHER B BHEMEEKEE
RNHEIRZ EREE °

ARRMITEERE  DERZRER
e BEFE  EEREESM2020
FIOA3A ZAFEZILEERE -

HEREBEESMN2021F9A30H

A e

EEBIEEE
2021
HK$°000
FHET

2020
HK$'000
TAT

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

AT RAEE RO FRER ZIETH

Tax loss ECL provision Total

REEE BAREEEHERE Bt

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET FHET FTET

At 1 October 2019 72019 10H1H - 5,619 5,619

Credit to profit or loss (Note 14) 16,995 422 17,417
STABE (M 14)

At 30 September 2020 202049 H30H 16,995 6,041 23,036

Charge to profit or loss (Note 14) (16,995) (6,041) (23,036)

kx BB (et 14)

At 30 September 2021 7202149 H30H -

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ 3 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HHEAE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000

Fi# FBT

Lease liabilities payable: JEMFEEE :

Within one year —F R
Within a period of more than one year but not more than two years
BB —FETHBBMRE

Within a period of more than two years but not more than five years

BEMFETBARTF
15,578
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months shown under current (10,492)
liabilities
WS RnBaE 12 AR &8 2 BN IE
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under non-current 5,086
liabilities

SIRFERB ARG Z12[EAREIR 2 BE 2 BAFIA

30. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 30. MHISRITHER
As at 30 September 2021 and 30 September 2020, no 2021F9A30H &2020F9H30R -
short-term bank borrowings utilised were secured by bank WMEGHBITERBAEE 2 RITER
deposits of the Group (note 24). The remaining balance as at R (Fi5E24) - A2021%9 8308 2
30 September 2021 represented unsecured bank borrowings. R AR TR B MRITIER » 12020
The balance as at 30 September 2020 were made for IPO FORAS0R BRI E R AREETF
margin loans and were fully repaid in early October 2020. REFRMEL - WER2020F10 A 717&
All of these bank borrowings carried interest with a range of HIER - FTEZSRITEZTNEEEN
HIBOR+2% p.a. to HIBOR+2.5% p.a. (2020: HIBOR+1.5% FEHEABRITAEFREM2%ZEBHRT
p.a. to HIBOR+2% p.a.). B EMN2.5% 2 (2020 : HHEIR

TR BIN1.5%E FBRITREN
BN2% 2 )

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT TAT

The carrying amounts of bank loans that contain a repayment on
demand clause (shown under current liabilities)
but repayable: )
HAERREREEGEFEERUTHEERZRTEXRGIARBARZ) 2K
H1E :
Within one year —% 370,000 2,371,000

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ % 2020/2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

31. BONDS ISSUED

Current mEhEBH
Corporate bonds — Placing A &/&% — &
Non-current FEBI &5
Corporate bonds — Placing A 8l{&% — &

31. BBTES

2021 2020
HK$’000

HK$'000
THETT

TR

499,080 399,281

- 995,323

499,080 1,394,604

The Company has not issued any new tranches of corporate
bonds during the years ended 30 September 2021 and 2020.

As at 30 September 2021, the current portion of outstanding
corporate bonds balance amounts to approximately HK$499.1
million (2020: HK$399.3 million). The current portion of
outstanding balance represented four tranches of the corporate
bonds issued under the placing agreement dated 12 April
2019 for bonds issuing with an aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$500 million. The current portion of outstanding
corporate bonds balance included an aggregate outstanding
principal amount of Hong Kong Dollars bonds of approximately
HK$499.1 million (2020: HK$389.9 million) and an aggregate
outstanding principal amount of U.S. Dollars bonds of US$Nil
(2020: US$1.2 million) (equivalent to approximately HK$Nil
million (2020: HK$9.4 million)).

As at 30 September 2020, the non-current portion of outstanding
corporate bonds balances amounts to approximately HK$995.3
million represented (i) five tranches of the corporate bonds
issued under the placing agreement dated 15 October 2018
for bonds issuing with an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$500 million, and (ii) four tranches of the corporate bonds
issued under the placing agreement dated 12 April 2019 for
bonds issuing with an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$500 million in principal amount totalling approximately
HK$1,000 million. The non-current portion of outstanding
corporate bonds balance included an aggregate outstanding
principal amount of Hong Kong Dollars bonds of approximately
HK$995.3 million and an aggregate principal amount of U.S.
Dollars bonds of US$Nil (equivalent to approximately HK$Nil).

H E2021F K 2020F9 300 IH45
B ARQABRWEBETEMFH ARG
# o

MN2021F9A30H » KEBEELFIES
EEREY R BB 49 A5499,100,00058 7T
(20204 : 399,300,000/87T) ° RIEE
oz R IR IE B A2019F
AR12B 2B EHEMBITASBESR
% /500,000,000 T 2 (&5 M7 2
Mt AEES - REEARGBESHEH
R mENER D B IE AR E BB TEEA
4 #2%8 #9499,100,0007 7T ( 20204 :
389,900,000/ 7T ) kR BERETESH
KN4 4% T 2 (20204 1,200,000
E7x) (BERLHZEET(20204F
9,400,000/ 7T)) °

MN2020F9A30 » ABEAFIES
w2 IER BN B 42 EE#9995,300,000
BT ()R E BB A2018F 10 A 15
AR ERERBETACLBREEL A
500,000,000/8 T 2 @5 M7 H
HRAFES R(i)BEBE A2019
FARIAZEEMERBETASR
¥ &% % /500,000,000 7T 2 &5 M
Bzt RARES A BBHA
1,000,000,0005 7T ° K{EE N BEH
EHRRIERBI D BIEMAREENBT
B N2 #8258 #47995,300,0005%8 7T K oK
BEMNELESF A RBETEIT(EE
RETHETT) °

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

31.

BONDS ISSUED (continued)

During the year ended 30 September 2021, the Company
has entered into an early redemption of nine tranches of
the corporate bonds under the placing agreement dated
11 April 2018 and 15 October 2018 for bonds issuing with
an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$900 million in
November 2020, June and August 2021 respectively. The
principal amount of such bonds together with interest accrued
thereon up to the date of redemption was fully repaid.

During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Company
has entered into an early redemption of four tranches of
the corporate bonds under the placing agreement dated 16
January 2018 for bonds issuing with an aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$800 million in February, March, April
and May 2020 respectively. The principal amount of such
bonds together with interest accrued thereon up to the date
of redemption was fully repaid.

The above bonds are with a maturity period of 3 years from
the issue date, and the interest will be paid annually in arrears
with the first interest payment date on the first anniversary
date after bond issuance. The bonds denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars and U.S. Dollars carry a fixed annual interest
rate with range from 5% to 5.25% and 4.75%, respectively.

Pursuant to the bond instrument of bonds placing
abovementioned, the Group may, at any time, before the
maturity date of the bonds, redeem the bonds by giving not
less than 10 business days written notice at 100% of the
principal amount of such bonds together with payment of
interest accrued thereon up to the date of redemption. The
directors considered that such early redemption option of the
bonds was not separated from the bonds since the economic
characteristics and risks of such early redemption option were
closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the
bonds. Subject to the conditions of the bond instrument, the
bondholder(s) shall not have the right to request the Company
to redeem the bonds prior to the maturity date of the bonds.

Subsequent to the year end but before the reporting date, the
Company has not entered into any bond placing agreements.

Subsequent to the year end, the Company entered into an
early redemption of one tranche (2020: three tranche) of the
corporate bonds issued under the placing agreement dated
12 April 2019 (2020: 30 April 2018). Bonds in aggregated
principal amount of approximately HK$235 million (2020:
HK$374 million, including HK$366 million and US$1 million),
were redeemed by the Company in November 2021 (2020:
November 2020). The principal amount of such bonds together
with interest accrued thereon up to the date of redemption
was fully repaid.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXA5EEER QT
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AREFETERF—EAFHE - WET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE
32. SHARE CAPITAL

32. A

Number of ordinary shares Nominal value of

of HK$0.01 each

ordinary shares

BREBNEBTZEERRNEE HERRG 2EE

2021

Authorised: J&TE

2020 2021

2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

TR

TR

At beginning of year ] CHODDEOGGIE  500,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000

At end of year F4 COLKOOLOOLDE  500,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000

Issued and fully paid: EETREE :

At beginning of year &4 6,740,845,724 6,740,845,724 67,408

67,408

At end of year 42 NZOVEIERZYE  6740,845,724 67,408

33. SHARE OPTIONS

The shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 26 January 2017 to approve the adoption of a share
option scheme of the Company which became effective on
27 January 2017 (“2017 Share Option Scheme”).

A summary of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is set out as
follows:

1. Purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate

talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

2. Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full-
time or part time, including Non-executive Directors)
and such other eligible participants.

3. Shares available for issue under the 2017
Share Option Scheme
(i)  Total number of shares: 674,084,572 shares,
representing 10% of the total number of issued
shares as at 26 January 2017, being the date of
passing the resolution for adoption of the 2017
Share Option Scheme.

(i) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents:
10% as at 30 December 2021.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT

67,408

33. BBiRfE

ARATIREER20175F1 826 B ET 2
AABIRREF RS FRB—IET/R
HE  HUEROAD R —AEREE
(201791 A27 BER) (1201748

PRt &)

2017 iRt Bl 2 EE &SI T

1. 2017 BRETEZEN

EAEEEEAN S| - E

Ko A

FHZEERSEELRAEEZ

ARERRBERMSN
2. BERAT

EER2EERERE (TwER
R BREFMITER)REH

Hib A ERSEE -

3. 20175 BRRAESTEIE T At

BITRAD

(i) M1H4EE :674,084,572/%
A% D - 1HF201751 A26H
(BEBER 492017 F B8 P
B2 RZREHE)B BT

F& 1D 48 2810% o

(i) HEBHTERMHAD

S

2021F12H30H /10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
33. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

4.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant under the 2017 Share Option
Scheme

(i) in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the shares in
issue in any 12-month period unless approved by

the shareholders; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or
Independent Non-executive Directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the shares in
issue and with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the

shareholders of the Company.

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the Board but in any event no

exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by

the Board.

(i)  Price payable on application or acceptance of the

option: HK$1.00;

(i)  The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of

grant;

(iii)  Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer date;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date;

and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the 2017 Share Option

Scheme:

Approximately 5 years (expiring on 26 January 2027).

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXA5EEER QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

33. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 33. BRE(E
During the years ended 30 September 2020 and 2021, RELE 20204 K& 202149 A30H LEF
no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or remained B BEEREABRIE017FHERE
outstanding under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and no STEIRE - 1T SR ITE
share-based payment expenses have been recognised in LA R I S A N6 2 MR 1T FF R R AR
both current and prior years. DRERNRHAXZ -

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 34. BAKRBHGE
The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme A& B [R5 2 BRI BB 3 R KT &
which is registered under the Hong Kong Occupational e sk 2 72 BE AL SR T 8 ([ B S AR RET
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and 21 1) R 2000F 12 AR IEE Bk M
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) NIEE T ENEHIRR L 2 & B ATE ST
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Zl([iERETEl]) - ZEFTEIEER
Scheme Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the REBECZEEDR @ WABIEEAE
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds B HEESHARFE - N est 8L
under the control of independent trustees. Employees who AIBBERNGTEKE ZREBHIERE
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment BE2 NP RNET B E A2 IN8TE
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within &2 - 200051281 B SKAZFT
the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas EAREEZABEEBHEZNARES
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December st -

2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or loss RBRFPHR ZRKREN KA TR EE
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group at BEBTERAEE 2 LE RBENZE
rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there are BEe 2\ - WEERENERHEKT
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully BRI B RIKGTE  AIRNEERE
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group R TR AL ALK -

are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2021, no forfeited 20209 A30H K& 20214F9H30H -
contributions arose upon employees leaving the ORSO WEEESREBERKTEMEEZ
Scheme. ORI ALK -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s loans and
borrowings arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

35. MEEHELANEBNHIR

TRFMAEERETHELNER R
fERES  BREASMIERSED -
RMEZHELTNAESHEMATREX
HENARRSREREAEBNEGES
fﬁgiﬁéﬁqﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%@fﬁ@ﬁ%
MEBIE -

Bond
interest
payable Short-
(included term
in other bank Bonds Lease
creditors) borrowings issued liabilities Total
EBAESFEFE
(Gt AEA
MR SHETHER CORTES HEAE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FTET THET THET FET
At 1 October 2019 91,627 231,173 2,813,544 13,628 3,149,972
R2019F10/81H
Financing cash flows (150,361) 2,139,827 (1,427,975) (11,871) 549,620
MEREME
Interest expense FB X 97,275 - - 542 97,817
New leases entered ¥1&]fA#) - - - 21,119 21,119
Other changes H1th &%) (8,649) - 9,035 - 386
At 30 September 2020 29,892 2,371,000 1,394,604 23,418 3,818,914
720209 A30H
Financing cash flows (75,693) (2,001,000) (899,870) (11,347)  (2,987,910)
BMERESME
Interest expense 50,570 - 4,346 598 55,514
MESH
New leases entered - - - 2,909 2,909
EIEIRER:S)
At 30 September 2021 4,769 370,000 499,080 15,578 889,427
202149 A30H

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a)
these financial statements, the Group had the following
significant transactions with related parties:

Corporate finance advisory services fee income from related

companies (notes 3 & 6)

AREARNERZ CEBEBRREEWA (A Z3L6)

36. BEALXRS

BRI0 R 5 W 35 ok LA B0 0 P et
M2 R ZHN - AEEEEREAL

EITTINERRS :

2021
HK$°000
FERT

2,730

(i)

Sharing of expenses paid and payable to related companies

(notes 2 & 6)
DB RENTHEERR 2 ER (M E2K6)

— information technology services
BARHR RS

— administrative
1T

(iii)

Commission and brokerage income from

[A) T ZIBCER R & M A8 40 B A

— a related company (notes 3 & 6)
—FRE R (M :E35%6)

— directors of the Company (notes 1 & 3)
KRB ER(MF1K3)

(iv)

Printing, advertising and promotion expenses to related
companies (notes 2 & 6)
RAER B MER - BEREEER(MT2K6)

Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising from
business of dealing in securities by

REBFEEXEBZENARIR TR ZEMNEX

— an associate (note 4)
—MEEE R B (Aat4)

— directors of the Company (notes 1 & 2)
RRmMZER(ME1K2)

(vi)

Rental and other deposits paid to a related companies
(notes 5 & 6)
RBAER R X NS REMIRE (M t5Kk6)

(vii)

Interest expense from lease payable to related companies
(notes 3, 6 & 7)
ENERARMEE 2 NEX (i3 - 6%7)

(viii)

Lease liabilities payable to related companies
(notes 3, 6 & 7)
ENEEARIZEEAE(H3 - 6K7)

2020
HK$'000
TR

2,055

3,300

6,404

374

140

11,657

124

11,681
3,370

487

21,464

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EFXHSFEBEHBR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALXZ(E

(continued)
(a) (continued) (a) (#&)
Notes: et

(1)

For the transactions with the director(s) of the Company,
the directors include a director who is one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the relevant private discretionary trusts,
set up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is the deemed controlling
shareholder of the Company.

These transactions are connected transactions exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.33
of the Listing Rules.

These or some of these transactions are disclosable
continuing connected transactions (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the Company of
which details have been set out in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’
Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts of Significance and Connected Transactions”
of the Directors’ Report. The directors confirmed that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The associate company of the Group is disclosed in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

This amount represents refundable rental deposits paid
for the continuing connected transactions as set out in
item 1 of the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under “Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance
and Connected Transactions” of the Director’s Report.

The related companies are ultimately controlled by a
relevant private discretionary trust.

During the current year, interest expenses of HK$552,000
(2020: HK$487,000) was incurred in relation to lease
payable to related companies. As at 30 September
2021, lease liabilities payable to related companies
was HK$14,674,000 (2020: HK$21,464,000) and the
corresponding carrying amount (before impairment
allowances) of the right-of-use assets was HK$14,873,000
(2020: HK$22,759,000). The total cash outflow for leases
with related companies for the year ended 30 September
2021 was HK$10,073,000 (2020: HK$10,238,000) in
accordance with the relevant rental agreements.

(b) The compensation to directors and key management
personnel was disclosed in notes 11 and 12.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
ANNUAL REPORT & # 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEHRRME
For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE
37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30
September 2020 and 2021 are as follows:

3

7. TEMB AT
20204 K& 2021F9A30H + AN A]

TEMBRARZHBAT

Proportion of nominal
value

Place of paid capital/l  of issued share
capital

Issued and fully

incorporation/ registered

Name of subsidiary operation capital held by the Company

BEIR

HRE%/Ef ARFREZERAR

WEARER MR EEn Y Ex

N

30.9.2021

Emperor Asset Management Limited Hong Kong &7 HK$7,000,000
REAEERERAR 7,000,000
Emperor Capital Limited Hong Kong &%  HK$10,000,000
HEREERAT 10,000,000/ T
Emperor Capital (China) Limited Hong Kong &7 HK$100,000
AERSTBEBARLAR 100,000 7T
Emperor Finance Limited Hong Kong &% HK$2
ENBERATA 28T
Emperor Futures Limited Hong Kong &% HK$50,000,000
EHEERAT 50,000,000/ 7
Emperor Eresti%e Credit Limited Hong Kong &% HK$1,000,000
AESHEERRRA 1,000,000/ 7T
Emperor Securities Limited Hong Kong &%  HK$900,000,000
REEH(ER)BRAT 900,000,000/ 7T
Emperor Wealth Management Limited Hong Kong &7 HK$6,500,000
SHEEEARAA 6,500,000/57C
RIERZALSERAR PRC # HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T
REREZAR)ER AR PRC # HK$1,000,000
1,000,000/ T
RERBHARINERAT PRC HK$500,000
500,000/ 7

# The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the executive directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group.

To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
executive directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

%

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

30.9.2020
%

100 Provision of asset management services

PRt EEE RIS

100 Provision of corporate finance advisory

services
RELEREBRRE

100 Provision of promotion and marketing services

in the PRC
REBRESERTZERRSE

100 Provision of money lending services
PREE RS

100 Provision of futures brokerage services

REHELL R

100 Provision of money lending services
R ETRS

100 Provision of securities brokerage services and

margin financing services

REEFELERELARBERE

100 Provision of insurance and other brokerage

ervic

services
BRALfRIR LA A8 0 RTS

100 Business q§ye|0£ment in the PRC
RPEETRHER

100 Business development in the PRC
RPEETRHRR

100 Business development in the PRC

RPEETERRR

#  ZMERARTINEEEDRE
FREFIBTEFRARTIERE

¥ERAEFELARANBAT -

HITEERS  FAHIIAEHE AR

SEYRRENTLE

WA R AR PO (LR
SEWBL A EMTAREE EH5E

i/% o
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Non-current asset 3E;REN & E

Investment in a subsidiary R—MEHB AR Z&KE

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
38. SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF
THE COMPANY

RATRMBERBE

2021
HK$°000
FERT

219,003
2,150,000

2,369,003

Current assets mENEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUIEB AT 2 518
Tax recoverable A] @Y Fi18

Other assets Hith & &

Bank balances and cash R17#8 NIE S

3,267,033
1,386

207
36,936

3,305,562

Current liabilities JREI B (&

Other creditors and accrued charges Efth & BR XN fE =T &

Amount due to a subsidiary U — R E QR 2 58
Tax liabilities FiIE& &

Bonds issued B #1T1E 5

Short-term bank borrowings 2 #i$R1TE K

13,016
1,882,106

497,605
370,000

2,762,727

Net current assets i B &&EFEH

542,835

Total assets less current liabilities 2 & E R e A&

2,911,838

Non-current liabilities 3EREN B &

Bonds issued B &1T{&E%S

Net assets & & FE

2,911,838

Capital and reserves &7 K f#{#

Share capital J&7
Reserves &

67,408
2,844,430

Total equity (Note) #4258 (K17+)

2,911,838

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEFXHSFEBEHBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT £ % 2020/2021

2020
HK$’000
F

219,003
2,150,000

2,369,003

2,567,534
213
26,232
2,693,979

36,197

20,726
398,045

454,968
2,139,011
4,508,014

989,942
3,618,072

67,408
3,450,664

3,518,072



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

38. SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF 38. KN TBBEERBMEE)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: Kzt -

Retained profits
Share Share Special (accumulated

capital premium reserve loss) Total
REEF

TN R (E 1Rl E (RETER) #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER TR TET TER

At 1 October 2019 #2019510A1H 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 89,232 3,443,216

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year
FEEN R EmRE L - - - 74,856 74,856

At 30 September 2020 #202049HA30H 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 164,088 3,618,072

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

FEBRREAEMAX LS - - - (606,234) (606,234)
At 30 September 2021 72202149 A30H 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 (442,1406) 2,911,838
Special reserve represents the difference between nominal BRI EIERAARNB AR BITLE
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiaries of the Company f& 2 EEEARA G RIENR2007F4 72
in issue and the nominal value of the shares issued by the A2 SEEARWE —FEHE QR

Company for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a group TROEERCEZSE -

reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
ANNUAL REPORT 4 #§ 2020/2021 155



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. EXERmEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the
Group consists of debts, which include short-term bank
borrowings, bonds issued as disclosed in respective notes,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves as set out on the consolidated
statement of financial position, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and respective notes. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the share
capital. In view of this, the Group manages its overall capital
structure through the drawdown and repayment of bank
borrowings, issue of bonds, payment of dividends and issue
of share capital.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated Subsidiaries”)
are registered with Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”)
for the business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiaries
are subject to liquid capital requirements under Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted
by the SFC. Under the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries
must maintain their liquid capital in excess of HK$3 million
or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher.
The required information is filed with SFC on a monthly basis.

Another subsidiary of the Group was licensed with the
Insurance Authority. It is required to maintain a minimum net
asset value of HK$100,000 at all times.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
ANNUAL REPORT & # 2020/2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. cRIEMREEEERBER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include other debtors
and deposits, accounts receivable, loans and advances,
amount due from an associate, bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits, accounts payable, short-term
bank borrowings, lease liabilities, bonds issued and other
creditors. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements
in foreign exchange rates relating to receivables from and
payables to foreign brokers and foreign currency deposits
with banks. The management monitors foreign exchange
exposures and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposures should the need arises.

It is the Group’s policy for each operating entity to operate
in local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency
risks. Most of the Group’s principal businesses are conducted
and recorded in Hong Kong dollar, the functional currency
of respective group entities, except for certain receivables
from and payables to foreign brokers and bank deposits
which are denominated in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar,
United States dollar, Renminbi, Japanese Yen, British Pound
and Singapore dollar (see notes 23, 25 and 26 for details).
The executive directors of the Company considered that the
effect of currency risk is insignificant as the Group has minimal
exposure in Australian dollar, Renminbi, Japanese Yen, Euro,
British Pound and Singapore dollar and there is the linked
exchange rate system of Hong Kong dollar against United
States dollar. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis in relation
to foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the
management.

AEEFEemT ARFEEMEWERR
NTFEsR - RWERFR - B R BN - JE
W — R & AR 2 78 -~ RITEERNIR
& BHEFETER  ENER - E
HR1TIER - HEAE  BEBTES
NEMBEAER ZEeMT A
BEENSGZHFE - HZEemM T
BE#E R R {DEEZ SRR 2K
KEFIWOT - EREEERERZER
% VB RERFAB 0 N REUE E 18
i

™5 E ke
BHm e
BB 2 R B W N R A T IR SME A
IR BRSNS SRTT I 50 B 2 IMNEFE =
PRSPz BiRRER - EEEER
SNERER - WK B E BEIHE AN
PR

AEERZEALEETRENZBOR AR
ATREAE h ERLL - B INEE B &
IME o REBZ AZHEBEKIUE
TT(EEEBERZINEEE)ETRA
BR - S TREW R EMEINEL 2R
B SRITFEHRIT « g KoT ~ =%
7T AR - HE - BHERFMNFE T
SHERINGFIBS RMIE23 - 25K%26) °
RARMITEERE  ARAEELUR
TARYE - HE BB HERH
M TEITZ R SE D AR A TTEIETT
B Z ERGIE - SN R I SR E
AFE  BEit BB ERINEER
ST TR ERRE DT ©

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT

ANNUAL REPORT £ ¥ 2020/2021

157



158

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate accounts receivable, bank balances, loans and
advances, accounts payable and short-term bank borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly relates to the
fluctuation of Prime Rate arising from the Group’s accounts
receivable and loans and advances, market savings interest
rate arising from the Group’s bank balances and accounts
payable and HIBOR arising from Group’s short-term bank
borrowings. The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed below.

Financial instruments bearing variable interest rates in
nature

Assets BE
Accounts receivable EUBER
Loans and advances B &85
Bank balances fR17#58%

40. eRERREEEERBEK(E)

BEREFNRER

7R [ T g B B R R MR AR SR~ RAT
R BB BRI EH
RITERBRZRERENERER

AEE RS RENREERE BENE
=z IR N B R R B R E A 2 B
BEMNEKE - REBIRITHERNEN
ARARPTEE £ 2 5 1 & F R R AN E5E
HRTTREFMELE 2 BB RITAERE
BRE - AEEEG . EREENR TR
BREZMEXRARFLET -

AFFBFFEMEZEHMTA

2021
HK$’000

FERT

1,159,072 1,745,172
273,946 199,606
187,998 164,951

Liabilities & & B
Short-term bank borrowings 5 HiiR1T &

370,000 2,371,000

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period
and it is assumed that the amount of the above assets and
liabilities at the end of the reporting period was in existence
for the whole year and all other variables were held constant
throughout the respective year. A 50 basis point (2020: 50
basis point) change represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates in respect of
variable rate accounts receivable, loans and advances, bank
balances, accounts payable and short-term bank borrowings.

2021

FIEGRE

T ZBREED T TIBERRERRZ
FEREARTFINEE @ URENREL
REMEENBESEREF—EFE
MTBEEMEENSEFE—HERT
B o 50MEE 25 ( 20204 : 50{HE By ) &
FIEEEEBER TSR EUWERR -
BERRBR - RITES  BNERK
g%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%%%m%@%Zﬁ

2020

Change in basis points
+50 -50
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT

Change in basis points
o

Decrease (increase) in loss after
tax for the year .
AEEBRBRREBERD(EM) (4,438) (1,091) 1,779

EEERS - ANFRATES 2 AR
PREREARFAEmE 2B - 5%
[R\fg 2 GURE DT A ARKRIE -

In management’'s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the market interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
ANNUAL REPORT & # 2020/2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. eRIEAREERERBEEK(E)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has a delegated team to
compile the credit and risk management policies, to approve
credit limits and to determine any debt recovery action on
those delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual receivable at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk by any single debtor
as the exposure is spread over a number of individual and
institutional customers, except for the loans and advances
and accounts receivable as disclosed in notes 22 and 23.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

Internal credit rating Description

=& R R E R
MEHFHREBTREZEE - &
SERS RO RS BEENER &R
RNEERRAHZEE M BHNRAE 2%
FEEZRAME - ABEERRKN
bt AEEEEBRK—<BEK &
AERBEELEREEBRE - i
EEMREE N ETE S 16 R W ARK R
HUEMRBRITEY © tbSh - AREBR K
&R IR & 8 B FE U R R 2 AT MR Bl
B DARECRBLE R B SIRE 2 590
BEEBER -

AEEZMEE D 2 EPEERBRER
IR EE o AREBIWEPMEFE R
RREASTEERR - TIHRER
DEEZEBANMEEZP - fERE22
523%&@?2%?&&%&%&)@4@%?@%

R F I AHBEREEFREENS
BIEENRcEREE - ZRITHERZ
EERBRER -

AEBENANBEERBRFRBEATE
Al

ECL categories

ARG it RHREEHEER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and 12m ECL
{linEy does not have any past-due amounts or debtor 121& A FEHIZEEE
frequently repays after due dates in full
HFHENRREE B BEEEBAFIE - EHFA
REEIHERBEER
Medium risk There have been significant increases in credit  Lifetime ECL — not credit-
S E R risk since initial recognition through information impaired
developed internally or external resources T HIREMEEEIE —WAREAE
RIZAFE RSN ER - FERR B )i R EERE
PR
High risk There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
= A impaired impaired
BRBRAEELREERE i\ﬁﬁéﬁiﬁgééﬂé— BELE
= = /R

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZSEBEABR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s

financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment as at
30 September 2021 and 30 September 2020:

Internal
Notes credit ratin

it mEEEH

Financial assets at amortised cost

RBHrTEZEHEE

12m or lifetime ECL
12BA%2HRLEEES

40. eRERREEEERBEK(E)

FERBRKRERE(E)

TREHHR2021F9 A30H k202049
A30HAEE ¢ EERIETERZEE
B E 2 EERBFS

2021 2020
Gross carrying @Gross carrying
amount amount
WAERELE  2020FKE!
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$00
TAr ThET 1A

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments Low risk 2mECL 5,967
notes (i) & (i) \ vl 12EARHEEEE
EMERERT - e RBATEW) L)
Amount due from an associate (note (i) 20 Low risk 12m ECL 3,492
Rl —Bme R RRE W) &R 12EAEBEEFE
Loans and advances 3 R # 22 Low risk 12m ECL 1,543,249 2,436,393
(R 12EAEHEEEE
Medium risk L| time ECL - not credit- |mpa|red 110,719 237,261
HEER SHEREEBR - UAREREENE
H| hnsk L| etime ECL cred| |mpa\red 1,883,493 3,537,461 RRARNUGIRRNNPY)
Accounts receivable - secured margin loans 23 Low risk 12m ECL ) 87,340 928,114
FWES - FERAEER B[R 12EAEHEEES
Medium risk L|et|me ECL - not credit- |mpa|red 410,349 339,232

PRER SHRHEERE-YAREREERE

High risk

Lifetime ECL - credit- |mpa\red

3,096,818 3,594,507 PAYRYALIRKIKIP

!_Ji ’KN\ EEHHTEE\W %Eﬂﬁ E%E{ /JEME

Accounts receivable - others (Note (ii)) 23 Low/Medium risk Lifetime ECL - not credit-mpaired REIEN

TR - it (Hiati) E/mEER 2HEBEEEE-UAREEEAE
High risk Lifetime ECL - credit- |mpa\red 1,598 183,059 3517 2,566,645
mER PORHERE-CRELRENA

Pledged bank dep05|s general accounts (note (i) 24 Low risk 12mECL 160,000 160,000

EERRTER - —REP (W) Emk 12EAESEERE

Bank balances and cash - segregated accounts 25 Low risk 12mECL 1,834,598 157452

{Emk 12EAEHEERE

(note (ii))
Rk oAe - BUBRP W)

Bank balances and cash - /;eneral accounts (note (ii)) 25  Low risk

BiTies kRS - —R&P (ki) R

Notes:

(i) Prepayment of HK$1,069,000 (2020: HK$966,000) under other
debtors, deposits and prepayments were not classified as
financial assets at amortised cost.

(i) The directors of the Company consider the impacts of the
ECL are immaterial to the Group and no reconciliation loss
allowances have been prepared.

Emperor Capital Group Limited 2 3%
ANNUAL REPORT £ 3 2020/2021

EHEBAERNT

omECL
12EABHEERS

864,062

692,032

(i) HEWERER HeRBEMNFBEET
2 T FIAE1,069,00058 7T ( 20204F :
966,000/ 7T ) W 7k 7 $8 A R 3 S5 Ak AR
HEZEREBE -

(i) ARREERE  BHEEBBEZY

SUAREEMELTEK - HLER
SHBRERRE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The estimated default rates for each class of financial assets
are estimated based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the respective class of financial assets and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including macroeconomic data
such as GDP growth, unemployment benchmark interest
rates and house prices. The identification of internal credit
rating for individual financial assets is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
financial assets is updated.

Definition of 12m ECL, Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) and
Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) are as below:

12m ECL Exposures where there have not been a

(Stage 1): significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired
upon origination, the portion of the lifetime
ECL associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months is
recognised.

Lifetime ECL  Exposures where there have been a significant

(not credit- increase in credit risk since initial recognition
impaired) but are not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e.
(Stage 2): reflecting the remaining lifetime of the financial

asset) is recognised.

Lifetime Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
ECL (credit- when one or more events that have a
impaired) detrimental impact on the estimated future
(Stage 3): cash flows of that asset have occurred. For

exposures that have become credit-impaired,
a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest
revenue is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost (gross
carrying amount net of provision) rather than
the gross carrying amount from the beginning
of the subsequent reporting period.

The Management determines staging of financial assets subject
to ECL assessment based on qualitative and quantitative
factors, including overdue period of interest and principal,
change in fair value of pledged listed securities or properties
that triggered the margin calls for additional collateral or
constituted events of breach of contracts respectively, and
status of margin calls.

40. eRERREEEERBEK(E)

FE R KRERE(E)

BERCMEE AT ENRDRIESE
BMEEBR A FHAZBERRE
HIR(ETE - WL AT EBMEAEEREA
AT AZAEEERMEL AR - 81
BrEtEREIER  KEX  EEF
ERBEELERBEER  BEHEE
Hig s @R 2B EENIEEFRH
il é’{ﬁﬁﬂ%%%ﬁﬁ%@'ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁémﬁ
&R -

1R2EABREEEE  2HEMEES
BROAREEEERE) 2 HEHE
EBE(ERLEEERE) ZEZNT

128 BTEEE  fin B 9] T HERR A SR 4

EER (F— BEXEERBREMAR

PEER) - ELRYEEERE
AR 218 B A
BB ZAIEEERREE
Z AR EEEER
DB TIARER -

E2HMEMEE WAVTHEIAREE
BRI ARFEE R ANELE HNE I H R
EERE) 18- AIZAERAE N
(B-HER): EHEEER(AIRR

TREEZRIGFH)-

EHEMEE WMBAALZEEMS
BR(EELEE BEHNSHEEMARE
BR{E) REeREEX TR
(B=FR): 2 ZABRSWFTE
REBREERE - 3
EREEEREZRER
ms @ EREHEB
15 B B 18 A B 88 A R
(OB BB 2 BRE A2
18) i FEE & & 2
ZIRE AR EA B R X
AEMBUA -

EEEREEMNEERNZEERET
BHEEERFANEREENER
HERRBENERAGRHHE - 2
R 36 IR B & B A BRI HEEIME
Mo BRI E M 2 EEIR MRS
S E 2 RV EEEASEINRE S B
HERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. RIEMREBEEERBE(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERE KB ETE(E)
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of gross carrying T%ﬁlJﬁ*f‘g%’(&ﬁ%ﬂu&ﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁg
amount and loss allowances that has been recognised for PEREFEREMAEEEBERE Y
loans and advances and accounts receivable from margin B
client.
Loans and advances — loss allowance BEXRBY —FERE
30 September 2021 202149H30H

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit-  ECL (credit-

12m ECL |n§£alre§ impaired Total
2HREE

128AEAE Eﬁﬁ IAR:  FR(ERE
E5R

FEHE) FERE) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ ooo HK$'000
Thn TR Thn

il

Loss allowance as at 1 October 2020 #2020F10A 18 2 % & 25,174 720,405 745,722

Changes in the loss allowance due to financial assets as at 1 October 2020

RNNF0AIEREBEEEL L BRERED

- Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL (not credit-mpaired) (559)
- B2 REREFRRAR2IRER E*Eﬂ (ERREEEHE)

- Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL (credit |mpa|red No //f (16,334)
- BB EFREAZ L BRACEBR(CREEERE) (W)

- Transfer from lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) to lifet |me ECL écred| -mpaired) (Note (i)

- B RS ERR(IAREEERE BRE R BN EBR(CRLEERE) (W)

- Transfer from lifetime ECL (not credit |mpa|red) to 12m ECL

- B RS EBR(IAR L EERNE BRE 2 AR ERR

—Transferfom lifetime ECL (ored| |m§a|red) fof2mECL

- B EESEESR(CREEENE B 2EAEREERR

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial assets transferred from 12m ECL to (424)
litetime ECL (not creal- mpawred% N
-1 Mfﬁﬁ;ﬁ{ %Tﬁ?ﬁ;ﬁéﬁﬁ;ﬁ BREBRIARERERE)  SRERNE LB
[FEFREMTERE

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial assets transferred from 12m ECL to 181,328 181,328
lfetime ECL (credit-mpar ed) Note (i) N .
- B2 AR EFRER R MR EER(CREEAE)  eRERMEL L RER
e Ziﬁﬁrﬁéﬁ(ﬂf}fﬁ)

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from fmancwal assets transferred from lifetime ECL
(not credit-mpaired) to lifetime ECL SNo )) (credit-im a|red

- BRHEREEBR(UARLERHE E%éﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ Eé’% ShE) eHE
EFﬁEEZi‘EEﬁF%EH}EZE%HM%E(/J/H(N))

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial assets transferred from lifetime ECL
(not credit-mpaired) to 12m ECL o

- R R SR (AR E R B 2 AR E R SRR A B
[FEBR B EFE

—N(e r%measu emde)nto ECL ar\smg from financial assets transferred from lifetime ECL (13)
creditimpaire
- BEBRHEOER (E%ﬁ%f ‘sm JEEZEARBEESR CRARMEL ZBSE
BB ENHELE
- Net remeasurement of ECL due oohan e in credit risk without transfer of stage (Note (iv) 134 108,559 108,669
REERREDMEREEY  BREERR ENHEFE W L)
New financial assets ariginated or pur chased (Note (iii) 1,894 - 2,213
EESBA NS REE i)
Financial asse ha have been derecognised (4,572) (6,531) (11,152)
BT EREAE
As at 30 Sep fember 2021 7202159 4308 5,745 1,020,230 1,026,449
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RR M

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & Z2021F9A30H [FFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. £REMREEBERBEK(Z)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERBETGE(E)
(continued)
Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued) BHRBY - EEEEE)
30 September 2020 20209 H30H

EERE) a3t

HKS HK§ 000 | HK$000
Tin TR TR

Loss allowance s at 1 October 2019 RAV19% 107 16 2 BER(E 5% 9,90 40572 416,184

Changes in the loss allowance due to financial assets as at 1 October 2019

ROEI0RIRRERHEER L B RRERD

- Transfer from 12m ECL o lifgtime ECL (ot credit-impaired) 1) 1 - -

- B A e R R MR B R (R ARER

- Transfer from 12m ECL o lifgtime ECL (credit-mpaired) (Note

- B AR E R RER 2 BR R EER (R R AR

- Transfer from lfetime ECL (not credit-mpaired) to lfetime ECL (crecit-mpaired) (Note (ii) - (4928) 4928 -

- B R SR (AR R B BR T2 BRI R (R R LR ENE) i)

- Transfer from lfetime ECL (not crecit-mpaired) to 12m ECL 192 (192) - -

- B ERBREER(IAR R SRR ERRRCEER

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial assets transferred from 12m ECL to lfetime ECL - 69 - 69
(not credlt-impaired)

- B A R S R T R R O R R (AR R BN SR AR R RO EEE B e RE

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial assets fransferred from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL - - 119,075 119,075
(credit-mpaired) (Note (i)

- BB R R R BB R (C R RN SRR R RO RR R BT
(Hi)

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial assets transferred from lifgtime ECL (not credit-mpaired) - - 122,959 122,959
fo lifetime ECL (Note (i) (credit-mpaired)

- B R AR R (AR BN ER R B BB (B EEHE) LR AENE L RHREERY

TmE

)
i (13) - 13 -
B

= =

Bt AR )
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial assets transferred from lifgtime ECL (not credit-mpairec) 1445 - - 1445
fo 12m ECL
- B R BB (AR AR R T AR BB e RARTE RER AR BN 8RE
- Net remeasurement of ECL due to change in credit risk without transfer of stage (Note (iv)) 5127 15 (362) 4790
- RiEERRBINBRARS  RECEBR, BRI RE )
New financial assets originated or purchased (Note (ii) 18,004 3 08,066 86,108
EEIRAZNEREE (WiH)
Financial assets that have been derecognised (108) (479) (4) (4908)
BRI SHER
As at 30 September 2020 #2009 7308 %174 103 720406 145,122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2021 & % 2021F9 A30H |[FFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. eRIEMEEEERBE(E)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERBETG(E)

(continued)

Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued) BHRBY - EEEEE)

Notes: Mt

(i)  During the year ended 30 September 2021, loans and advances () MEZE2021F9HA30BLEFE -
with a gross carrying amount of approximately HK$696 million RBEHNLEAE—BERERR
(2020: HK$474 million), which were classified as stage 1 as at & 49 696,000,000 % JT(2020 4 :
beginning of the reporting period, were assessed as credit- 474,000,000/ 70 ) 2 E R R B 5K E
impaired and were transferred to stage 3. Accordingly, the FEARECEHLEEERE  LEEHE
impairment allowance of approximately HK$16 million (2020: EE=FR- At M12@ A&
HK$0.01 million) made under 12m ECL was transferred to HEEBBETEL ZRERED
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired). Additional re-measurement of 16,000,000 7T ( 20204F : 10,0007
impairment allowance of approximately HK$181 million (2020: TIEEEEZE>HEHEEREE(E
HK$119 million) was made under lifetime ECL (credit impaired) BEEERE) c EREEREERGE
by the management under the individual assessment. HEREHEHEEER(EEEE

BERE)E T EHBINEFT2RE
P #5 #7181,000,000% 7T (20204 -
119,000,000/ 7T) °

As at 30 September 2021, included in these exposures of M202149HA30H * #9696,000,000
approxima